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This document 1s tmportant and requires your immediate attenuon If you are 1n any doubt as to what acuon you
should take, you are recommended to seek your own financial advice from your stockbroker or other independent
adviser authorised under the Financial Services and Markets Act 2000 inmediately

If you have sold or otherwise transferred all of your shares in The European Investment Trust plc, please forward
this document as soon as possible to the purchaser or transferee or to the stockbroker, bank or other agent through
whom the sale or transfer was effected for transmission to the purchaser or transferee

Registered in England and Wales Number 1055384

An investment company as defined under Section 833 of the Companies Act 2006




Company Summary

Investment objective

Shareholders’ funds

Market capitalisation

Capital structure

Savings plans

AIC

Investment Manager

Investment
management fee

To achieve long-term capital growth through a diversified portfolic of Conunental
European securities A detaled description of the Company’s mvestment policy 1s set
out 1n the Directors’ Report on page 12

£237,350,000 at 30 September 2011

£196,103,000 at 30 September 2011

As at 30 September 2011 and at the date of this report, the Company had 42,400,748
ordinary shares of 25p each mn 1ssue

The Company’s ordinary shares are eligible for inclusion 1n ISAs, Jumor ISAs and SIPPs
Savings Plans and ISAs are available through the BNP Paribas - Edinburgh Partners
Savings Scheme and ISA, both for lump sum investments and regular contributions
Details may be obtained from Edinburgh Partners, as detailed on page 10 or through
the Company’s website www theeuropeaninvestmenttrust com

The Company 1s a member of the Association of Invesunent Companies

Edinburgh Partners Limited (“Edinburgh Partners™)

0 55% per annum of the Company’s market capitalisation payable quarterly
1N arrears



Financial Summary

Results for year 30 Secptember 2011

Shareholders’ funds £237.35m
Net asset value per ordinary share (*NAV™) 559.78p
Share price per ordinary share 462.50p
Share price discount to NAV 17.4%
Year to

30 September 2011

Revenue return per ordinary share* 16.97p
Capital return per ordmary share* (94.35)p
Total return per ordinary share* (77.38)p
Final dvidend per ordinary share** 12.00p
Special dividend per ordinary share** 4.00p
Total dividend per ordinary share** 16.00p

30 Septemnber 2010
£277 85m
650 69p
545 00p
16 2%

Year to
30 September 2010

13 79p
7 60p
21 39p
11 00p
3 00p
14 00p

* Based on the weighted average number of shares 1n 1ssue during the year

** Proposed dividend for the year

Year to

Year’s high/low 30 September 2011

NAV - high 733.11p
- low 544.58p
Share price - lgh 621.00p
- low 450.13p
Share price discount to NAV
- low 11.0%
- high 18.7%
Year to
Performance 30 September 2011

NAV Total Return (12.1Y%
FTSE All-World Europe ex UK Index Total Return* (13.6)%

* In sterling

Year to
30 September 2010

673 28p
559 84p

576 00p
465 50p

11 3%
18 4%

Year to
30 September 2010

+4 8%
+2 3%

Change
(14 6%
(14 0)%
(15 1Y%

The NAV Total Return 1s sourced from Edmnburgh Partners and includes dmadends remnvested Prior to 1 February
2010, the investment manager was F&C Management Lirmited (“F&C”) and NAV returns were sourced from F&C
The index performance figures are sourced from Thomson Reuters Datastreamn Past performance 1s not a guide to

future performance

Year to

Cost of running the Company 30 September 2011
Total expense rano* 0.60%

* Based on total expenses for the year and average net asset value

Year 10
30 September 2010

0 64%




Chairman’s Statement

Results

In the year to 30 September 2011, a difficult period for European equity markets, the net asset value per share
(“NAV™) of your Company fell by 14 0% from 650 7p to 559 8p After taking account of dimndends paid in the
year of 14 Op, the total return was -12 1% While 1t was disappoinung to see a negauve return 1t represented an
outperformance of 1 5% when compared with the toral return of —13 6% from the FTSE All-Worid Europe Index,
excluding the UK and adjusted to sterling The Company’s share price fell by 15 1% from 545 Op to 462 S5p and
the discount to net asset value widened from 16 2% 10 17 4%

Since the appomtment of Edinburgh Partners as Investment Manager on 1 February 2010 the NAV total return 1n
the twenty month period to 30 September 2011 was —4 9% This was an outperformance of 2 6% when compared
with the total return of —7 5% from the FTSE All-World Europe Index, excluding the UK and adjusted to sterling

Revenue

I am pleased to report that there was & very significant increase 1n the revenue return per share which rose by

23 2% from 13 8p to 17 Op 1n the year to 30 September 2011 This increase was principally achueved as a result of
the portfolio strategy of moving to higher yielding stocks, which was detailed in last year’s report There was a
margmnal reduction 1n total expenses when compared with last year and the Company also benefited from a
reduction 1n the Company’s overall tax rate from 11% 1o 10%

It was good to note in a recent study by the Association of Investment Companies {“AIC") that your Company has
one of the lowest expense ratnios of all Investmeni Trusts and the lowest in the AIC European sector The total
expense ratio fell from 0 64% to 0 60% 1n the financial year

Dividend

As a resulr of the mcreased income generation from the portfolio in the year to 30 September 2011, the Board 15
recommending a final dividend of 12 Op per share and a special dividend of 4 Op per share, a total of 16 Op per
share This year’s dividend compares with dividends 1n 2010 of 14 Op per share, which consisted of a final dividend
of 11 Op per share and a special dividend of 3 Op per share Overall the total dinidend of 16 Op represents an
mcrease of 14 3% on the prewvious year’s total dividend

Subject to the approval of shareholders at the Annual General Meeung on 17 January 2012, the final dividend of
12 Op and special dividend of 4 Op wall be paid on 31 January 2012 to shareholders on the register at the close of
business on 6 January 2012 The ex-dividend date will be 4 January 2012

Share buybacks

The Company bought back and cancelled 300,000 shares during the financial year at a total cost of £1 7m The
shares bought back represented 0 7% of the share capital 1n 1ssue at the beginning of the Company’s financial year
on 1 October 2010 Over the past two years the Company has bought back a toral of 3,352,000 shares, over 7% of
the shares 1n 1ssue at the start of the period

The Directors will propose at the Annual General Meeting on 17 January 2012 that the Company’s powers to
make further purchases of up to 14 99% of its shares 1n 15sue be renewed

Portfoho activity

While the Investment Manager’s investment strategy remains focused on individual stock selection, with an
emphasis on dividend generation and balance sheet strength, the principal sector changes made dunng the year
were 10 Increase exposure to the consumer goods, consumer services and industrials sectors These moves were
offset by reductions 1n the basic matenals and technology sectors The principal geographic changes were to
increase the Company’s exposure to Switzerland, Italy and the Netherlands to 19 8%, 10 4% and 16 2% of net
assets respectively (2010 10 9%, 7 2% and 13 4%) These increases were offset by a reduction 1n the investment 1n
France to 14 3% (2010 20 5%) and smaller reductions in @ number of other European countries, including a full
disposal of the Company’s Austrian investment The number of investments increased marginally from 39 1o 42




Chairman’s Statement (conunued)

Gearing

Following the recent fall in equity markets, the Board, on the recommendation of the Investment Manager,
considered 1t would be appropniate to have the ability to borrow momes on behaif of the Company Shortly before
the year end, in September 2011, the Company entered into a Euro 30m secured mulucurrency revolving loan
facility agreement with Scotiabank Europe PLC The facility 1s available for three years and interest will be payable
on amounts drawn down at the rate of 1 55% per annum above the British Bankers® Associauon Interest
Settlement Rate If fully uulised it would result 1n a gearing level of approximately 10% of net assets To date no
amount has been drawn under this facihity

Savings Scheme

The Company’s ordinary shares are eligible for inclusion 1in ISAs, Junior ISAs and SIPPs Savings Plans and ISAs
are available through the BNP Panbas — Edinburgh Partners Savings Scheme and ISA, both for lump sum
mvestments and regular contributtons Details may be obtained from the Investment Manager, Edinburgh
Partners, or through the Company’s website www theeuropeaninvestmenttrust com

Association of Investment Companies
We conunue to support the actuviues of the AIC, including their input on proposals made by the UK Government
and the European Union 1 relation to the political and regulatory framework in which vour Company operates.

Annual General Meeting

We hope that as many shareholders as possible will attend the Annual General Meeting which will be held at
11 00 am on Tuesday, 17 January 2012 at Brewers’ Hall, Aldermanbury Square, London EC2V 7HR We look
forward to meeting all shareholders who are able to attend

Outlook

Whilst the economic outlook 1s uncertain and will remain so unul the Eurozone debt crisis 1s resolved, the
portfolio strategy being pursued s clear The valuatuon of many high quality European compames fell sharply
during the final quarter of our financial year, providing the opportunity to buy a number of compames on low
valuatons The common characteristic of these purchases was that a sigmificant proporuon of their forecast
earnings derives from emerging economies where we expect higher levels of long-term growth Portfolio sales were
companies with lower long-term growth prospects and higher risk profiles, trading on similar or higher valuanons
The net effect of the activity should be to increase the long-term growth prospects of the portfolio

Douglas McDougall
Chairman

28 November 2011



Investment Manager’s Report and Portfolio Analysis

Economic and Investment Overview
It has been an eventful year for financial markets and in partcular for European equities Macroeconomic
uncertainty 18 to the fore and the European sovereign debt crisis has weighed heavily on markets

The European Umon has brought many benefits to its participants It has alse brought imbalances The financial
fault lines 1n Europe emanate from monetary uruon without fiscal umon and the region now needs to deaide if
further politicat and fiscal integration 1s a long-term objective 1t genuinely desires The much debated austerity
programmes, bank recapitalisations and rescue funds are all important parts of the solution, but are only part of a
larger framework Given the history of Europe and the high stakes, 1t 1s far more likely a solution will evolve over
ume than appear overmight With the markets applying pressure, this could mean we stumble from one mini-crisis
to another as the situauon develops

The Eurozone crists s obviously not the only 1ssue of macroeconomic relevance Government bond prices have
been telling us for some time that deflation 1s ikely However, if history 1s any guide, the most likely outcome
following a financial crisis 1s that inflanon will provide the least painful route out of the problem If the outturn 1s
mflation, 1s this good for equities® As with many economic questions, the answer 1s yes and no Yes, mn that during
inflanonary periods equities tend to deliver the best risk adjusted returns when compared to the other main asset
classes However, the negauve side of unanucipated inflanon would be a likely de-raung of corporate profits

Despite the uncertainues detailed above, the outlook 15 not all negauve Developing economies are likely to grow at a
faster pace than developed econormmues and this will be of benefit to many European companies One outcome of the
current economic uncertanty could be the removal of structural hindrances 1n European economies This 1s certainly
not something the market 1s focusing on but could provide for a very positive long-term investment environment

Portfolio Strategy

Against what has been a very difficult nvestment backdrop we have found the positive features to inform our
portfolio strategy Many European companies with strong internationally recognised brands have spent recent
decades diversifying from their home markets and bulding promising positiens 1n emerging markets Many of
these compames are at, or close to, a tipping point, where profit growth from emerging markets will make a more
sigmficant contnbution to overall profits than growth from theirr mature markets

Unilever 1s a good example It 15 the Anglo-Dutch food and personal care group with household brand names such
as Flora, Magnum, Hellmann’s, PG Tips, Dove and Persit Umlever currently generates approxirnately 30% of nis
profit from emerging markets and this 1s forecast to grow to over 70% Even if there 15 no growth n the next five
years in developed markets, the group should be able to grow its profits in the mid single digat range This profit
growth alone can jusufy the valuation

Other portfolio investments which are sumilarly posittoned are Julius Baer (private banking}, Pernod Ricard (spirits),
Adidas (sporting goods), Heineken (beer), Swatch (Omega and Breguet luxury brands), and Michelin (tyres)

Even if the outlook for European economies 1s one of pedestrian growth, there are potental investment
opportunities to be found 1t companies exposed to emerging markets Many of these companies trade on lower
valuation multiples than thewr global peers simply because of their listing on a European stock exchange

Where we do have exposure to compames which rely on developed European markets for their profits, these
compames display sector leadership, visible or structural growth, or very low valuauons

Examples of the first two types of company include

. D’Ieteren — This Belgian company’s main asset 1s Belron, the leading vehicle glass repair and replacement
company in the world, trading as Autoglass in the UK There 1s no global peer to Belron Insurance
companies are happy to refer customers to Autoglass as their vans can repair a chipped windscreen rather
than automatically replacing 1t, thus making a conswderable saving The resultant benefits of scale and market
share gains are leading to strong cash flow generauon, with low sensiuvity to the economac situation

. SAP - This German company 1s a leading global provider of enterprise resource software Whilst most of
1ts profits are from the developed world, the visibility of 1ts revenue and profits comes from the ‘mmssion-
critical’ nature of 1s product The company has experienced a 99% renewal rate from customers and 1s 1in
the process of rolling out new products



Investment Manager’s Report and Portfolio Analysis (contunued)

The third category referred to above relates to companies trading on very low valuaunons In uncertain tmes it 15
tempting t¢ mvest only in companies percerved to have ‘high quality’ characteristics The problem with this strategy
15 that many other investors come to the same conclusion and valuations are rarely cheap

Your portfolio has followed a balanced strategy We have invested 1n some higher quality comparies where volanle
markets have given good entry valuations The portfolio also contains 2 number of compantes that fit into the
unloved category Whulst we have no holdings in Greece or Portugal at present, approximately 20% of the
Company’s assets are mvested 1n Inish, tahan and Spamish comparues The majority of the posiions here are 1n
international companies that have suffered valuation compression, not because of their profit delivery but because
their countries of domicile have been the subject of seemingly endless negative newsflow

A good example 15 the Itahan listed company Prysmian, which 15 a leading prowvider of cable to the energy and
telecommumcanons sectors I 1s a beneficiary of an increasing demand for bandwidith {optical fibre) as well as much
needed infrastructure spending 1o upgrade power transmission and distnibution netwoerks Having acquired one of 1ts
mamn competitors, Draka, the company should deliver acquisition synergies as well as steady underlying growth

Qutlook

One could be quite dispirited when looking at the current range of macroeconomic ssues facing European
economies and stock markets However, we are fortunate that we can invest m companies that can operate
successfully notwithstanding the challenging backdrop Following recent stock market falls, current valuations are
attractive, although we do have to acknowledge that they could stay so for some ume With at least some of the
issues discounted 1n valuations, we will remain fully invested 1n a portfolic of undervalued European equities The
strengths of our mvesunent process include expenienced people, an appropriate ume herizen and a strong
valuation discipline In current market conditions these qualities will be necessary to achieve the Company’s
objecuve of achieving long-term capal growth for shareholders

We were pleased the Board agreed to take on the geanng facility referred to in the Chairman’s Statement and
would anucipate being able o 1dentfy addinional good mvestment opportunities to deploy this facility during its
three-year term

Dale Robertson
Edinburgh Parmers Limited

28 November 2011



Portfolio of Investments

as at 30 September 2011

20 largest equity investments

Company

Ahold

Imtech

Sanofi

CAF

Telecom Italia
DCC

Toral

Vivend:

Unulever

Roval Durch Shell
Ryanair
Swedbank

ENI

Intesa Sanpaolo
Bangque Cantonale Vaudose
SAP

Gazprom

ABB

GEA Group
Belgacom

Sector

Consumer Services
Industrials

Health Care
Industrials
Telecommunications
Industrnials

Ol & Gas
Consumer Services
Consumer Goods
01l & Gas
Consumer Services
Financals

Ml & Gas
Financals
Fiancials
Technology

Ml & Gas
Industrials
Industrials
Telecommunications

Total - 20 largest equity investments

Other investments
Gerresheimer
Hemeken

Nokia

Kabel Deutschland
Deutsche Post
Gategroup
Novarus

Prysmian

Pernod Ricard
Banco Bilbao Vizcaya Argentaria
Reed Elsevier

UBS

Actelion

Adidas

Swaich

Julms Bzer
D’leteren

Maichelin

Syngenta
Teleperformance
Amadeus

Aixtron

Total - 42 equity investments
Cash and other net assets

Net assets

Health Care
Consumer Goods
Technology
Consumer Services
Industrials
Consumer Services
Health Care
Industrials
Consumer Goods
Financials
Consumer Services
Fmancials

Health Care
Consumer Goods
Consumer Goods
Fiancials
Consumer Services
Consumer Goods
Basic Materials
Consumer Services
Industrials
Technotogy

Country

Netherlands
Netherlands
France
Spam

Ttaly

Ireland
France
France
Netherlands
Netherlands
Ireland
Sweden
Traly

Ttaly
Swatzerland
Germany
Russia
Switzerland
Germany
Belgium

Germany
Netherlands
Finland
Germany
Germany
Switzerland
Switzerland
Traly
France
Spam
Netherlands
Swirzerland
Swatzerland
Germany
Swizerland
Swiitzerland
Belgium
France
Swarzerland
France
Spamn
Germany

Y of
Valuation Net Assets
£000
7,659 32
7,417 31
7,281 31
6,946 29
6,845 29
6,756 28
6,574 28
6,412 27
6,387 27
6,371 27
6,323 27
6,320 26
6,193 26
6,103 26
6,100 26
5,984 25
5,975 25
5,847 25
5,774 24
5,697 24
128,964 54.3
5,608 24
5,580 24
5,552 23
5,491 23
5,362 23
5,361 23
3,349 23
5,331 23
5,271 22
5,097 21
5,088 21
5,084 21
5,010 21
4,887 21
4,875 21
4,834 20
4,757 20
4,355 18
4,276 18
3,940 17
3,881 16
2,727 11
236,680 99,7
670 0.3
237,350 100.0

The geographic distribution 1 based on each mvestment’s principal stock exchange listing, except m mstances where this would not give a proper

indicatton of where its activities predominate

Of the ten largest portfolic mvestments as at 30 September 2011 the valuations at the previous year end, 30 September 2010, were Ahold £8,640,000,
Sanofi £7,253,000, DCC £6,585,000, Total £6,687,000, Vivendi £8,433,000 and Royal Dutch Shell £7,478,000 The remaining four investments,
Imtech, CAF, Telecom Italia and Unilever were new purchases made during the year ended 30 September 2011



Distribution of Investments
as at 30 September 2011 (% of net assets)

Sector distribution

Geographical distribution

The geographic distribution 1s based on each investment’s principal stock exchange listing, except in nstances
where this would not give a proper indicauon of where 1ts activities predominate




Directors and Investment Manager

Directors
All of the Directors are non-executive and independent of the Investmment Manager

Douglas C P McDougall OBE (Chairman)

Douglas McDougall 1s chairman of The Law Debenture Corporanon PLC, The Independent Investment Trust PL.C
and The Scotush Investment Trust PLC He 1s a non-executive director of Herald Investment Trust PLC, Pacific
Honzon Investment Trust PLC, Stramongate Assets PLC and The Monks Invesunent Trust Plc He 1s a former
sentor partner of Baillie Gafford and Co and former chairman of IMRO and The Association of Investment
Companies He was appointed as a Director of The European Investment Trust plc in February 1999, and became
Charman 1n May 1999

William D Eason

Willlam Eason 1s chairman of the mvestment commuittee of Cheviot Asset Management He has been mvolved in
the fund management business and private client investment management for over 30 years, mainly at Laing &
Cruickshank He 15 a director of Henderson International Income Trust plc He 1s a former chairman of Henderson
High Income Trust PL.C He was appomted as a Direcror of The European Investment Trust plc in May 2007

Ralph Kanza

Ralph Kaznza 1s chairman of Egerton Capital Lirmited and a former vice chairman of Schroder & Co Ltd, based n
London Previously he was chairman of the French stockbroking firmm Cheuvreux de Virieu, and responsible for
European equity markets at Banque Indosuez He was appomnted as a Director of The European Investment Trust
plc 1n September 1997

Michael B Moule (Senior Independent Director)

Michael Moule was an investment trust manager at Henderson Global Investors, where he managed two investment
trusts until his retirement 1n 2003 He 15 chairman of Polar Capital Technology Trust PLC and a director of
Montanare UK Smaller Companies Investment Trust PL.C Previously he was a director of The Bankers
Investment Trust plc and Lowland Investment Company PLC He was appointed as a Director of The European
Investment Trust plc 1n January 2004

Investment Manager

Edinburgh Partners Limited
Edinburgh Partners Limited (“Edinburgh Partners™) was founded in 2003 as a specialist investmernt management
firm It manages over £7 billion from insutunonal clients, including two investment trusts

The investment manager of The European Investment Trust plc 1s Dale Robertson

Dale Robertson BComm, CA, ASIP

Dale Robertson has been an Investment Parwer with Edinburgh Partners since uts launch in 2003 He has research
responsibihity for the global transport sector and manages Edinburgh Partners’ Eurcpean portfolios Previously he
spent two years at Scottish Widows Investment Partnership where he managed European equity growth funds
Prior to that he worked for Edinburgh Fund Managers for five years where he had responsibility for managing
retail and msturunonal funds
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Kenneth ] Greig
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Independent Auditors

Chartered Accountants and Starutory Auditors
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www computershare co uk
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Takapuna, North Shore City 0622

New Zealand
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Bankers
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JPMorgan Chase Bank, NA
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Bournemouth
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Directors’ Report

The Charrman’s Statement on pages 3 and 4 and the Corporate Governance Statement on pages 20 to 24 form
part of the Directors’ Report

The Directors present their Annual Report and Audited Financial Statements for the year to 30 September 2011

Business review

Financial reporting requirements direct that the Company 15 required to provide a business review within the
Directors’ Report The business review must contamn a review of the Company’s business, the principal risks and
uncertainues it faces, an analysis of 1ts performance during the financial year, the position at the year end and the
future business plans of the Company It must also provide informaton about the Company’s environmental, social
and ethical policy and about persons with whom the Company has contractual or other arrangements essential to
the business of the Company To ai1d understanding of these areas the Board 1s required 1o include analysis using
appropnate Key Performance Indicators

Forward looking statements

This busmess review contains “forward looking statements” with respect 1o the Company’s plans and 1ts current
goals and expectations relating to 1ts future financial condition, performance and results By thesr nature, all forward
looking statemnents mvolve risk and uncertainty because they relate to future events that are beyond the Company’s
control Factors that could cause actual resules to differ materially from those estimated by the forward looking
staternents include, but are not himited to

. Conunental European economic conditions and equity market performance and prices

. Changes in Contmental European Government policies and monetary and mterest rate policies

. Changes to regulations and taxes, both 1n the UK and Continental Europe

. Changes 1o consumer spending or saving habuts and the impact of wmflanen and deflanon

. European currency exchange rates

. The Company’s success 1n managing 1ts assets and business to manage the above factors and use
of gearng

As a result, the Company’s actual future condition, performance and results may differ materially from the plans set
out 1n the Company’s forward looking statements The Company undertakes no obligation to update the forward
logking statements contained wathin this review or any other forward looking statements 1t makes

Bustness and status of the Company

The Company 15 registered as a public himited company and 1s an invesunent company within the terms of Secrion
833 of the Companies Act 2006 The Company has received approval from HM Revenue & Customs as an
approved investment trust under Section 842 of the Income and Corporauon Taxes Act 1988 for the period from
inception to 30 September 2008 and for the two years to 30 September 2010 under Sections 1158 and 1159 of
the Corporation Tax Act 2010 (“CTA™) This approval 1s subject to there being no subsequent enquiry under
corporation tax self-assessment In the opimon of the Directors, the Company has subsequently directed 1ts affairs
50 as to enable 1t to continue to qualify for such approval and the Company will continue to seek approval each year

The Company’s shares are listed on the Official List of the UK Lisung Authority and traded on the mamn market
of the London Stock Exchange The Company has a secondary hsting on the New Zealand Stock Exchange

A review of the Company’s acuvities during the year 1s given in the Chairman’s Statement on pages 3 and 4 and n
the Investment Manager's Report and Portfolio Analysis on pages 5 and 6

Objectrve
The objective of The European Investment Trust ple 1s to achieve long-term capital growth through a diversified
portfolio of Continental European securities
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Directors’ Report (conunued)

Investment policy

The Board believes that mnvestment in the diverse and increasingly accessible markets of this region provides
opportunities for capital growth over the long-term At the same time 1t considers the structure of the Company as
a UK listed investment trust, with fixed capital and an independent Board of Directors, to be well smited to
ivestors seeking longer-term returns

The Board recogmses that investment in some European countries can be niskier than in others Investment risks
are diversified through holding a wide range of secunties in different countries and industrial sectors No more
than 10% of the value of the portfolio 1n aggregate may be held in securities in those countries which are not
mcluded 1in the FTSE All-World European indices

The Board has the authority to hedge the Company’s exposure to movements in the rate of exchange of currencies,
principally the euro, in which the Company’s investments are denominated, agamst sterling, 1ts reporting currency
However, 1t 1s not generally the Board’s pracuce to do this and the portfolio i1s not currently hedged

No investrents i unquoted stocks can be made without the prior approval of the Board The level of gearing
within the portfolio 15 agreed by the Board and should not exceed 20% 1n normal market conditions

No more than 10% of the total assets of the Company may be invested 1n other listed investment companies
{including investment trusts) except 1 such other mvestment companies which themselves have stated that they wili
mnvest no more then 15% of their total assets in other listed investment companies, in which case the hmat 1s 15%

The Investment Manager’s compliance with the imits set out in the mvestment policy 1s momtored by the Board

Investment strategy

Investments are selected for the portfolio only after extensive research which the Investment Manager believes to be
key The whole process through which an equity must pass in order to be included 1in the portfolio 1s very nigorous
Only a security where the Investment Manager believes that the price will be sigmficantly lgher 1n the furure wiil
pass the selection process The Company’s Investment Manager believes the key to successful stock selecuon 1s to
identify the long-term value of a company’s shares and to have the patience to hold the shares until that value 1s
appreciated by other investors Idenufying long-term value involves detailed analysis of company’s earning

prospects over a five-year time horizon The portfolio will normally consist of 40 1o 50 invesunents

Portfoho analysis

The Company has observed and intends to observe the investment restrictions necessary to achieve and mamntain
approved investment trust status in the United Kingdom and to comply with the Listing Rules of the Financial
Services Authority (“FSA™) No single investment will represent more than 15% of the Company’s gross assets at
the nme of 1ts acquisition

A detailed review of how the Company’s assets have been invested 1s contamned in the Investment Manager's
Report and Portfolio Analysis on pages 5 and 6 A detailed list of all the Company’s invesunents 1s contamned n

the Portfohio of Investments on page 7 The Portfolio of Investments details that the Company held 42 investments,
excluding cash and other net assets, as at 30 Septernber 2011, wath the largest representing 3 2% of net assets, thus
ensuring that the Company has a suitable spread of investment risk A sector and geographical distribunion of
investments 15 shown on page 8

Principal risks and uncertainties

The Board constders that the following are the principal risks associated with wnvesting 1n the Company invesument
and strategy risk, discount volaulity risk, market risk (comprising mterest rate risk, currency nsk and other price
nsk), hquidity nisk, credit risk and gearing nsk An explananon of these rnisks and how they are managed and the
policy and practuice with regard to financial istruments are contamned 1n note 18 on pages 41 to 44
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In addition, the Board also considers the following as principal risks

Regulatory nigk

Relevant legislation and regulaunons which apply to the Company include the Comparnes Act 2006, the
Corporation Tax Act 2010 (“CTA™) and the FSA Listing Rules A breach of the CTA could result in the Company
losing 1ts status as an investment trust and becorming subject to capital gamns tax, whilst a breach of the Listing
Rules might result in censure by the FSA The Company has noted the recommendations of the UK Corporate
Governance Code, the AIC Code of Corporate Governance (“AIC Code™) and the relevant AIC Corporate
Governance Guide for Investment Companies Its staternent of comphance appears on page 20

At each Board meeting the status of the Company 1s considered and discussed, so as to ensure that all regulations
are being adhered to by the Company and nts service providers

The Board 15 not aware of any breaches of laws or regulations duning the year under review and up to the date of
thus report

Operanonal risk

In common with most other imvestment companies the Company has no employees, the Company therefore relies
upon the services provided by third parties There are a number of operational risks associated with the fact that
third parues undertake the Company’s administration and custody The main risk 1s that the third parnes may fail to
ensure that statutory requirements, such as comphance with the Companes Act and FSA Listing Rules, are met

The Board regularly receives and reviews management wnformauon from third parnies which the Secretary
compiles In addition, each of the third parties provides a copy of 1ts report on mnternal controls (SAS 70, AAF or
equivalent) to the Board each year

Financial risk
Inappropriate accounting pohicies or fallure to comply with current or new accounting standards may lead 10 a
breach of regulations

The Investrnent Manager employs independent administrators to prepare all Financial Statements and the Audit
and Management Engagement Committee meets with the independent Auditor at least once a vear to discuss all
financial matters including appropriate accounting policies

The Company 15 a member of the AIC, a trade body mtended to promote investment trusts which also develops
best practice for all 1ts members

The Board undertakes an annual assessment and review of all the nisks stated above and in note 18 on pages 41 to
44, together with a review of any new risks which may have ansen duning the year These nisks are formahsed
within the Company’s risk assessment matrix

Performance
Net asset value
The net asset value per ordinary share (“NAV”) at 30 Seprtember 2011 was 559 78p (2010 650 69p)

Results
The results for the year are set out in the Income Statement on page 28 and the Reconcihation of Movements in
Sharcholders’ Funds on page 30

Dhwvidends

The Directors recommend a final dividend of 12 Op per ordinary share and a special dividend of 4 Op per ordinary
share (2010 final didend of 11 Op and special dividend of 3 Op), making a total dividend of 16 Op per ordinary
share (2010 14 Op) If appreoved by shareholders, these dividends will be payable on 31 January 2012 to
shareholders on the register at the close of business on 6 January 2012 The ex-dividend date will be 4 January
2012
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Directors’ Report (continued)

Key performance tndicators

At each Board meeting, the Directors consider a number of performance measures to assess the Company’s
success 1 achieving its objective The key performance indicators used to measure progress and performance of
the Company over ume are established industry measures and are as follows

. Net asset value per ordinary share total return compared to the FTSE All-World Europe ex UK Total
Return Index adjusted to sterling

. Share price premium/discount to net asset value per share

. Total expense rano

The records of the key performance indicators are shown in the Fmancaal Summary on page 2 and the Ten Year
Record on pages 45 and 46

The Board also takes into consideration how the Company performs compared to other investment trusts investing
n Europe

Share caprtal

During the year ended 30 September 2011 the Company purchased 300,000 ordinary shares (with a nominal

value of £75,000) for cancellation, representing 0 70% of the 1ssued share capital at 30 September 2010, for an

aggregate amount of £1,735,000 The shares were acquired 1n line with the Board’s policy to purchase shares at

below net asset value per share and when 1n the interests of shareholders !

The Company made no share 1ssues during the year ended 30 September 2011 As at 30 September 2011 and as
at the date of this report, the Company had 42,400,748 ordinary shares of 25p each in 1ssue

At general meeungs of the Company, one vote is attached to each ordinary share in 155ue

Current and future developments

A review of the main features of the year and the outlook for the coming vear 15 to be found 1n the Chairman’s
Statement on pages 3 and 4 and the Investment Manager’s Report and Portfolio Analysis on pages 5 and 6 The
Board’s main focus 1s on the mvestment return and approach Attention 1s paid to the mtegrity and success of the
mvestment approach and on factors which may have an impact on this approach Due regard 1s paid to the
promotion of the Company mncluding communication with shareholders and other external parties The Board 1s
regularly updated on wider investment trust industry 1ssues Detailed papers are presented to the Board which lead
to extensive discussion on development and strategy

Social, environmental and ethical policy

The Company seeks to invest in compames that are well managed, with high standards of corporate governance as
the Directors behieve this creates the proper condiuions to enhance long-term value for shareholders The Company
adopts a posiive approach to corporate governance and engagement with companies

In pursuit of the above objective, the Directors believe that proxy voting 1s an important part of the corporate
governance process and considers seriously 1ts obligation to manage the voting rights of companes 1in which 1t 15
invested, for which 1t has delegated responsibility to 115 Investment Manager It 1s the policy of the Company to
vote, as far as 1s practicable, at all shareholder meetings of investee companies The Company follows the relevant
applicable regulatory and legislative requirements in the UK, with the gwmiding principles being to make proxy
voung decisions which favour proposals that will lead to maximising shareholder value while avoidmg any conflicts
of interest Voung decisions are based on an agreed policy framework, with the key 1ssues on which the Investment
Manager focuses being corporate governance, mcluding disclosure and transparency, board compositon and
independence, control structures, remuneration and social and environmental 1ssues

The Company itself has no employees and all the Directors are non-executive The day-to-day management of
the Company’s business has been delegated to the Company’s Investment Manager, Edinburgh Partners, who
have an Environmental, SRI and Corporate Governance (“ESG™) policy n place, which can be found on their
website www edinburghpartners com
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Directors
The Darectors in office duning the year and at the date of this report are as shown below

Douglas C P McDougall OBE (appoiwnted 22 February 1999)

William D Eason {(appomnted 16 May 2007)
Raiph Kanza {(appomnted 19 September 1997)
Michael B Moule (appointed 23 January 2004)

Directors’ interests
The nterests of the Directors in the ordinary shares of the Company are set out below

30 September 2011 30 September 2010

Beneficial Benefical

Mr D C P McDougall OBE 16,000 10,000
MrW D Eason 10,000 10,000
Mr R Kanza 10,000 10,000
Mr M B Moule 7,500 5,000

There have been no changes to these holdings between 30 September 2011 and the date of this report

None of the Directors or any persons connected with them had a material interest in the Company’s transactions,
arrangements or agreements during the year

Substantial share interests
As at 30 September 2011, the Company had been mformed of the following noufiable mnterests 1 the voung rights
of the Company

No of shares % of votung nghts
1607 Capital Partners, LLL.C 7,095,144 16 73
Investec Wealth & Investment Limited 2,547,009 601
Legal & General Group PLC 1,714,424 404

There have been no changes to the above substannal share interests since 30 September 2011

Information about securities carrying voting rights
The followmg information 1s disclosed 1n accordance with the Large and Medium-sized Companies and Groups
(Accounting and Reports) Regulations 2008 and DTR 7 2 6 of the FSA’s Disclosure and Transparency Rules

. The Company’s capital structure and voting rights are summansed on pages 1 and 14
. Details of the substantial shareholders in the Company are listed above
. The giving of powers to 1ssue or buy back the Company’s shares require the relevant resclution to be

passed by shareholders The Board's current powers to issue and buy back shares and proposals for their
renewal are detailed on pages 16 and 17

. There are no restricuons concerning the transfer of securities 1n the Company, no special nights with
regard to control attached to securities, no agreements between holders of secunnes regarding their
transfer known to the Company, and no agreements which the Company 1s party te that might affect 1ts
control following a successful takeover bid

Investment Management Agreement

The Company’s mnvestments are managed by Edinburgh Parters under an Investument Management Agreement
dated 29 January 2010 The Investment Manager receves a management fee of 0 55% per annum of the
Company’s market capitalisation, payable quarterly in arrears The Investment Management Agreement may be
terminated by erther party giving three months written notice No additional compensation 15 payable to
Edinburgh Partners on the terrmnation of this agreement other than the fees payable during the notice period No
performance fee 15 payable The costs of the Company’s share savings scheme are imtially invoiced by the scheme’s
administrator to the Investment Manager and are subsequently reimbursed by the Company Further details
relating to the Investment Management Agreement are detailed in note 3
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Directors’ Report (continued)

Appointment of the Investment Manager

The Board keeps the performance of the Investment Manager under review through the Audit and Management
Engagement Committee The Company appomnied Edinburgh Partners as Investment Manager with effect from

I February 2010 It s the opinion of the Directors that the conunuing appomtment of Edinburgh Partners on the
terms agreed 15 1n the interests of shareholders as a whole The reasons for this view are that the investment
performance 1s satisfactory relative to that of the markets in which the Company invests and because the
remuneration of the Investment Manager 1s reasonable both i absolute terms and compared to that of managers of
comparable investment comparues The Directors believe that by paying the investment management fee calculated
on a market capitalisation basis, rather than a percentage of assets basis, the interests of the Invesument Manager
are more closely aligned with these of shareholders

Related parties

There were no related party transactions during the year Under the Statement of Recommended Pracuce
(“SORP”) 1ssued by the AIC in January 2009, the Investment Manager 1s not considered to be a related party of
the Company

Going concern

The Company’s business activittes, together with the factors likely to affect 1ts future development, performance and
position, are set out 1n the Business Review on pages 11 to 14 In addition, notes 18 and 19 to the Financal
Statements include the Company’s objecuves, policies and processes for managing its capual, 1ts financial risk
management objectives, details of 1ts financial instruments, and its nisk exposure The Company’s principal rnisks are
mvestment and strategy risk, discount volatility risk, market risk (comprising mterest rate nsk, currency risk and
other price risk), hquidity nisk, credit risk, gearng risk, regulatory nisk, operanonal risk and financial risk The
Company’s assets consist principally of a diversified portfolio of listed European equity shares, which in most
circumstances are realisable within a short period of time and exceed 1ts habilities by a significant amount

The Dhrectors have concluded that the Company has adequarte resources to conunue 1n operational existence for the
foreseeable future For this reason, they have adopted the going concern basis 1n preparing the Financial Statements

Payment of suppliers

It 1s the Company’s payment policy to obtain the best possible terms for all business and, therefore, there 15 no
consistent policy as to terms used The Company agrees with 1ts suppliers the terms on which business will take
place and 1t 15 the Company’s policy to abide by those terms

There were no trade creditors at 30 September 2011 (2010 none)

Donations
The Company made no polincal or charitable donations during the year

Independent Auditors

A resolution to re-appoimnt PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP as Independent Auditors to the Company and to
authorise the Board to deterrmine therr remuneration will be put to shareholders at the forthcoming Annual
General Meeting to be held on 17 January 2012

Special business at the Annual General Meeting

At the Annual General Meeung held on 18 January 2011 the Company was granted authority to purchase up to

14 99% of the Company’s ordinary shares 1n 1ssue at that date, being 6,355,872 ordmnary shares Details of shares
bought back during the year can be found on page 14 As at the date of this report, the Company may purchase up
to 6,355,872 ordinary shares under this existing authonty

Resolution 11 {a Special Resolution), as set out in the notice of meenng, 1f passed, will renew the Dhrectors’
authority to purchase for cancellation up to 6,355,872 ordinary shares (bemng 14 99% of the 1ssued share capatal as
at the date of this report, ot 1f less, 14 99% of the 1ssued share capital immediately following the passing of the
resolution} In accordance with the Listing Rules of the FSA, the price paid for shares will be not less than 25p per
ordinary share, and not more than the higher of (1) 5% above the average mid-market prices of those shares as
derived from the Daily Official Last of the London Stock Exchange for the five business days before the shares are
purchased and (11} the amount stipulated by Arucle 5(1) of the Buy-Back and Stabihsanon Regulanons 2003
(being a price higher than the higher of the price of the last independent trade and the highest current independent
bid on the radmg venue where the purchase 1s carred out)
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It 1s the Board’s policy that purchases of shares will only be made through the market for cash at prices below the
prevailing net asset value of the shares The authority will be used where the Directors consider 1t to be 1 the best
uterests of shareholders and the Company Shares purchased will be cancelled The authonty, if given, will lapse at
the conclusion of the Company’s next Annual General Meeting afier the passing of this resolunon (which must be
held no later than 31 March 2013)

Resolution 12 (an Ordmnary Resolution), as set our in the notice of meeting, if passed, will renew the Directors’
authonty to 1ssue up to an aggregate nominal value of £3,533,395 representing 14,133,582 ordinary shares (being
approximately one-third of the 1ssued share capital as at the date of this report) in accordance with statutory pre-
emption rights In addition, in accordance with the guidance from the Associanon of Briush Insurers on the
expectations of institutional mvestors 1n relation to the authority of directors to allot shares, paragraph (b) of
Resolunion 12 will authorise the Dhrectors to allot additional ordinary shares up to 2 maximum nominal amount of
£3,533,395 which 18 approximately a further one-third of the 1ssued share capital as at the date of this report
However, the Directors will only be able to allot those shares for the purpose of a rights 1ssue 1n which the new
shares are offered to shareholders in proporuon to theiwr then shareholdings The Company holds no shares in
treasury The authonty, if given, will lapse at the conclusion of the next Annual General Meetung of the Company
after the passing of this resoluuion {(which must be held no later than 31 March 2013) The authonty will be used
where Directors consider 1t to be 1n the best interests of shareholders The Directors will enly 1ssue new ordinary
shares at a price at or above the prevatling net asset value per share

Resoluwon 13 (a Special Resolution), as set out n the nouce of meetng, if passed, will renew the Directors’ authority
to 1ssue shares (1) by way of a rights 1ssue (subject to certain exclusions), (11) by way of an open offer or other offer of
securities (not being a rights 1ssue) 1n favour of existing shareholders 1n proporuon to their shareholdings (subject to
certain exclusions), and {(11) to persons other than exisung shareholders up to an aggregate nominal value of £530,009,
representing 2,120,037 ordinary shares (being approximately 5% of the 1ssued share capital as at the date of this report)
withour first having 1o offer such shares 10 existing shareholders The authonty, if given, will lapse at the conclusion of
the Company’s next Annual General Meeting after the passing of this resolunon (which must be held no later than
31 March 2013) The authonity will be used where Directors consider 1t to be in the best interests of shareholders
The Directors wall only 1ssue new ordmary shares at a price at or above the prevailling net asset value per share

Resolution 14 (a Special Resolution), as set out in the notice of meenng, if passed, will renew the approval to
convene all general meetings of the Company, other than annual general meetings, on a mumumum of 14 clear days
notice The notice period for annual general meenngs will remain at 21 clear days The approval will be effective
unul the Company’s next Annual General Meeting, when 1t 15 intended that renewal will be sought The Directors
will only call general meeungs on 14 clear days notice where they consider it in the best interests of shareholders to
do so and the relevant matter requires to be dealt with expediently

Directors’ recommendation

The Directors consider each resolution being proposed at the Annual General Meeting to be 1n the best interests
of shareholders as a whole and they unanimously recommend that al] shareholders vote 1n favour of them, as they
mntend to do so 1n respect of their own beneficial shareholdings

By order of the Board
Kenneth § Graig
Secretary

28 November 2011
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Directors’ Remuneration Report

The Directors submut this Report in accordance with the requirements of Schedule 8 to the Large and Medum-
sized Compantes and Groups (Accounts and Report) Regulations 2008 An ordinary resolution will be put to the
members to recewve the Report at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting to be held on 17 January 2012

The law requires the Company’s Auditors to audit certain disclosures provided Whete disclosures have been
audited, they are indicated as such The Auditors’ opinion 1s included n their report on pages 26 and 27

Remuneration Committee
The Board consists entirely of independent non-executive Directors and 1t 1s therefore not considered appropriate
for the Company to establish 2 separate remuneration committee

Policy on Directors’ fees

The Company follows the recommendation of the AIC Code that Directors’ remuneration should reflect their
duues, responsibilities and the value of their ime spent The Board’s policy 15 that the remuneration of the
Durectors should reflect the experience of the Board as a whole, and 1s determined with reference to comparable
organsations and appomtments It 15 intended that this policy will conunue for the year ending 30 September
2012 and for subsequent financial years

The Company’s Articles of Association himit the aggregate fees payable to the Board of Directors to a total of
£150,000 per annum They are not eligible for bonuses, pension benefits, share opuons, long-term mncenuve
schemes or other benefits, as the Board does not consider such arrangements or benefits necessary or appropriate
for non-execunive Dhrectors

Duirectors’ fees have not been increased for four years, the last increase having been made on 1 October 2007 In hght
of that, and following a review of the current level of Dwrectors’ fees 1n comparison 1o other ivestment companies, the
Board determined that, with effect from 1 October 2011, the Directors’ fees would be increased from £17,000 to
£19,000 and that the Charman’s fee would be mncreased from £25,000 to {28,000 The addmmonal payment to

Mr McDougall in his capacity as chairman of the Audit and Management Engagement Committee remams
unchanged at £1,500

Directors’ service contracts

The Company does not enter inta service contracts with s Directors Instead, the Company has a policy of
entering into a letter of appomnument with each of 1ts Directors The Company’s policy when determirung the
duration of and notice periods, and termmnauon payments, under such letters of appomntment 1s to follow prevailing
best practice guidelines It 1s the Company’s policy for all Directors 1o stand for re-election annually

There 1s ne notice period and no provision for compensation upon early termination of appointment

Your Company’s performance

The graph below compares the total return (assuming all dwidends are reinvested) to sharcholders, compared 1o
the total shareholder return of the FTSE All-World Europe ex UK Total Return Index This index 1s the
benchmark agamst which the Company’s performance 1s measured

5 year performance

Source Edinburgh Partners Limited

Prior to 1 February 2010, the Investment Manager was F&C Management Limiuted
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Directors’ emoluments for the year ended 30 September 2011 (audited)
The Directors who served in the year received the followmng emoluments 1n the form of fees

Year to Year to

30 September 2011 30 September 2010

£ L

Mr D C P McDougall (Chairman) 26,500 26,500
MrW D Eason 17,000 17,000
Mr R Kanza 17,000 17,000
Mr M B Moule 17,000 17,000

77,500 77,500

Approval

The Directors’ Remuneration Report was approved by the Board on 28 November 2011 and signed on 1ts behalf
by

Douglas Mcé:lw

Chairman
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Corporate Governance

Statement of Compliance with the AIC Code of Corporate Governance

The Board of The European Investment Trust plc has considered the principles and recommendatons of the AIC
Code of Corporate Governance (“AIC Code”) by reference to the AIC Corporate Governance Guide for
Investment Companes (“AlC Guide™), both of which can be found on the AIC website www theaic co uk The
AIC Code, as explained by the AIC Guide, addresses all the principles detailed m: the UK Corporate Governance
Code as well as setung out addinonal principles and recommendatons on 1ssues that are of specific relevance to the
Company The Board considers that reporting against the principles and recommendations of the AIC Code, and
by reference to the AIC Guide (which incorporates the UK Corperate Governance Code), will provide betier
mmformation to shareholders A copy of the UK Corporate Governance Code can be found at www frc org uk
Investors in New Zealand should note that the corporate governance rules and principles applicable to the
Company 1in the UK may differ matenally from those of the New Zealand Stock Exchange’s Corporate
Governance Best Practice Code

In September 2010, the Financial Reporung Counal (“FRC™), the UK's independent regulator for corporate
reporting and governance responsible for the UK Corporate Governance Code, reconfirmed 1its endorsement of
the AIC Code and the AIC Guide The terms of the FRC’s endorsement mean that AIC members who report
against the AIC Code and the AIC Guide meet fully their obligations under the UK Corporate Governance Code
and the related disclosure requirements contained n the Listing Rules

The Board noted the publication of the new UK Corporate Governance Code, which replaced the Combined
Code, and that the AIC updated the AIC Code where relevant These new Codes were apphcable for accounnng
periods beginning on or after 29 June 2010 and were relevant for the year under review

The Board considers that 1t has managed 1ts affairs throughout the year ended 30 September 2011 1n comphance
with the recommendations of the AIC Code and the relevant provisions of the UK Corperate Governance Code,
to the extent they are relevant 1o the Company’s business, except as set out below

The UK Corporate Governance Code mcludes provisions relanng 1o

. the role of the chief executive
. executive directors’ remuneration
. the need for an internal audut function

For the reasons set out 1 the AIC Guide and 1n the pre-amble to the AIC Code, the Board considers that these
provisions are not relevant to the positon of the Company, being an externally managed investment trust The
Company has therefore not reported further in respect of these provisions

Board of Directors

Under the leadership of the Chairman, the Board 1s responsible for the effective stewardship of the Company’s
affairs, including corporate strategy, corporate governance, risk assessment and overall investment policy The
Board consists of four non-executive Directors whose individual knowledge and experience provide 2 balance of
skills and expertise relevant to the Company and they consider that they commit sufficient ume to the Company’s
affairs Mr Moule has been appomnted as the Senior Independent Director Brief biographical details of the
Directors can be found on page 9

A process of performance evaluation has been undertaken by which the performance of the Chairman, each
Director, the Audit and Management Engagement Commuittee and the Board as a whole has been evaluated in
respect of the year ended 30 September 2011 Thus process consisted of a series of appraisal meeungs and
discussions between the Chairman and each of the Directors The performance of the Chairman was similarly
evaluated by the other Directors The Board does not consider the use of external consultants to conduct this
evaluation as likely to provide any meanmingful advantage over the process that has been adopted, however the
option of doing so will be regularly reviewed

Each Director has signed a letter of appointment to formalise 1n writing the terms of his engagement as a non-
executive Drrector, copies of which are available on request from the Secretary None of the Dhrectors has a contract
of service with the Company

The Board has agreed a procedure for the induction and waming of new Board appomtees and ongomg training
requirements are dealt with as required

20




The Directors of the Company meet formally at least four tumes a year to review and recerve reports on a full range
of relevant matters, including investments, marketing, administration and risks In addition meetings are held on
an ad-hoc basis as required The Directors have adopted a formal schedule of matters reserved for the Board that
cannot be delegated 10 a commuittee or to any other parry

The Board delegates decisions regarding the day-to-day investunent of the Company’s portfolio to the Investment
Manager Representauves from the Investment Manager are invited to Board meeungs to provide reports on
investments, financial, marketing, operational and admnistrative matters The Investment Manager 1s authonised
by the Board to exercise the Company’s votung rights in respect of those investments held i the portfolio

Re-election of Drrectors

It 1s the Company’s policy for all Directors to stand for re-elecuon annually Each of the Directors has made a
valuable and effecuve contribunon to your Company and the Board therefore recommends that you vote in favour of
their re-election

Darectors’ independence

The Board regularly reviews the independence of 1ts members in accordance with current guidelines The Board
considers that length of service does not necessarily compromuse the independence or contribution of directors of
mvestment trust companies, where experience and contunuirty can be a significant strength Therefore no limit has
been imposed on the length of service of any Director The Board believes that 1ts four non-executive Directors,
mcluding Mr McDougall and Mr Kanza, who have served as Directors for 12 years and 14 years respectively, are
mdependent 1n character and judgement

Board Commutiees

The Board has established an Audit and Management Engagement Commuittee to assist with 1ts operations The
terms of the delegated responsibilities are clearly defined in formal terms of reference, copies of which are available
from the Company’s Registered Office The Commuittee meets formally twice a year and consists of Mir Eason,

Mr Moule and Mr McDougall, who 15 Chairman It 1s considered thart there 1s a range of recent and relevant
financial expenence amongst the members of the Audit and Management Engagement Commuittee

The Beard believes 1t 15 appropriate for the Charrman of the Company, Mr McDougall, to chair the Audit and
Management Engagement Committee because 1t does not believe that the provisions of the UK Corporate
Governance Code relating to Audit Comrmittees are relevant to an investment company with a small Board
comprised wholly of independent, non-executive Directors It believes that Mr McDougall provides a valuable
contribution to the Audit and Management Engagemnent Commuittee and that his chairmanship enhances the
operaten of the Committee and 1ts interaction with the Board

The primary responsibilities of the Audit and Management Engagement Commaittee are to review the imtegrity and
contents of the Company’s Financtal Staternents and accountig policies, to consider compliance with regulatory and
financial reporung requirements, 1o review the Company’s internal control and risk management systems, to review
annually the need for the Company to have i1ts own internal audit function, to consider the independence and
objecuwity of the Auditors and the effecuveness of the audit, and to make recommendatons to the Board n relanon to
the appomntment and rernuneration of the Auditors The Audit and Management Engagement Commuttee has direct
access to the Auditors, PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, who attend the relevant Audit and Management Engagement
Commuttee meeting to report on the audit of the Company and 1ts review of the Annual Report and Fmancial
Statements The Commuttee has the opportunity to meet with the Auditors without the Manager bemng present

All non-audit work proposed to be carrzed out by the Auditors must be approved by the Audit and Management
Engagement Committee 1n advance to ensure that auditor objecuvity and independence 1s safeguarded, and the
Auditors may be excluded from carrying out certain types of non-audit work No non-audn services were provided
durng the year ended 30 September 2011

Following consideration of the performance of the Auditors, the service provided durning the year and a review of
their independence and objecuvity, the Commirttee recommended to the Board the re-appointment of
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP as Auditors to the Company

The Company's management functions are delegated to the Investment Manager, Edinburgh Partners The Audit
and Management Engagement Commuttee considers the performance of the Investment Manager, the terms of
their engagement and, on an annual basis, the continued appointment of the Investment Manager and makes
recommendanons to the Board
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Corporate Governance (conunued)

The Company has no executtve Directors and no employees and consequently does not have a remuneration
committee The Directors’ Remuneration Report on pages 18 and 19 provides information on the remuneration
arrangements for the Directors of the Company

The Board 1s formed enurely of non-executive Directors and, being small 1n size, operates without a
nomination commiitee

Meenng attendance

Audit and Management
Board Engagement Committee
Number of Number of Number of Number of
meetings held meeangs artended meetings held meenngs attended

Mr D C P McDougali OBE 4 4 2 2
MrW D Eason 4 4 2 2

Mr R Kanza 4 4 N/A N/A
Mr M B Moule 4 3 2 1

In addition to the above formal meetings of the Board and Audit and Management Engagement Commattee,
addinonal ad-hoc meetings have been held as requured

Conflicts of interest

A Director must avoid a situation in which he has, or can have, a direct or indirect interest that conflicts, or
possibly may conflict, with the Company’s interests (a “situational conflict”™) The Company’s Articles of
Associanon give the Directors authonty to approve such situations, where appropriate It s the responsibility of
each individual Director to avord an unauthorised confhict situation arising

The Board 1s responsible for considening Directors’ requests for authonsation of situational conflicts and for
deciding whether or not the situational conflict should be authorised The factors to be considered will include
whether the situational conflict could prevent the Director from properly perforrming his duties, whether 1t has, or
could have, any impact on the Company and whether 1t could be regarded as likely to affect the judgement and/or
actipns of the Director in question When the Board 15 deciding whether to authonise a conflict or potental
conflict, only Directors who have no interest in the matter being considered are able 1o take the relevant decision,
and in taking the decision the Directors must act in 8 way they consider, 1n good faith, will be most likely to
promote the Company’s success The Directors are able to impose limits or conditions when giving authorisanion of
they think this 15 appropriate in the circumstances

A register of conflicts 1s mamtamed by the Company Secretary and s reviewed at Board meetings, to ensure that
any authornised conflicts remain appropriate Directors are required 1o confirm at these meeungs whether there has
been any change to their position

Internal control review
The Directors acknowledge that they are responsible for the Company’s systems of mternal control and for
reviewing their effectiveness

In accordance with the guidance of the Financial Reporung Council on internal controls, a process has been
implemented for 1dentifying, evaluating and managing nisks faced by the Company This process has been 1 place
throughout the year ended 30 September 2011 and up to the date the Financial Statements were approved Key
procedures estabhshed with a view to providing effective financial control have also been in place for the year
ended 30 September 2011 and up to the date the Financial Statements were approved

The risk management process and systems of internal control are designed to manage rather than eliminate the
risk of faillure to achieve the Company’s objecuve It should be recognised that such systems can only provide
reasonable, not absolute assurance agamst material misstatemnent or loss
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Internal control assessment process

Risk assessment and the review of internal controls are undertaken by the Board 1n the context of the Company’s
overall investment objective The review covers the key business, operational, complhiance and financial risks facing
the Company In arriving at its judgement of what risks the Company faces, the Board has considered the
Company’s operations 1n the hight of the following factors

the nature and extent of risks which it regards as acceptable for the Company to bear within 1ts overail
business objective,

the threat of such risks becoming a reality,
the Company’s ability to reduce the inctdence and impact of risk on its performance, and

the cost to the Company and benefits related to the Company and third parties operating the
relevant controls

Agamst this background, the Board has split the review of risk and associated controls mnto four sections reflecting
the nature of the rsks being addressed These sections are as follows

corporate strategy,
published mformation, compliance with laws and regulations,
retanionship with service providers, and

investment and business activities

The Company has appownted agents, including Edinburgh Partners, to provide administranve services to the
Company In performing its functions, Edinburgh Partners delegates certain administrative tasks 1o thurd parues
The Company has obtained from Edinburgh Pariners and the other service providers assurances and information
relating to their internal systems and controls to enable the Board to make an appropriate risk and control
assessment, mncluding the following

details of the contreol environment 1n operation,
idennfication and evaluanon of risks and control objectives,
assessment of communication procedures,

assessment of the control procedures,

details of the “whistle blowing” policy 1n place, and

assurances that appropriate bribery risk and anu-corruption policies are 1n place to ensure compliance
with the Bribery Act 2010, which became effective on 1 July 2011

The key procedures which have been established to provide internal financial controls are as follows

investment management 15 provided by Edinburgh Partners The Beard 1s responsible for setting the
overall investment policy and monitors the actions of the Investment Manager at regular Board meetings,

admimstrauon and company secretarial duties for the Company are performed by Edinburgh Partners
Kenneth J Greig, a director of Edinburgh Partners, 1s the Company Secretary and Capita Sinclair
Henderson Limited provides certamn accountng, admmmstratrve and secretarial support services to Edinburgh
Parwers,

custody of assets 1s undertaken by JPMorgan Chase Bank, NA,

the dunes of investment management, accounting and the custody of assets are segregated The
procedures of the individual parties are designed to complement one another,

the Board clearly defines the duties and responsibilities of their agents and adwvisers The appomntment of
agents and adwisers to the Company 1s conducted by the Board after consideration of the quality of the
parties involved, the Board monitors their ongomng performance and contractual arrangements,
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Corporate (Governance (continued)

. mandates for authonsation of investment transactions and expense payments are set by the Board, and

. the Board reviews financial mnformation provided by Edinburgh Partners and Capita Sinclair Henderson
Lumited i detail on a regular basis

All of the Company’s management functions are performed by third partues whose internal controls are reviewed
by the Board or on 1ts behalf by Edinburgh Partners

In accordance with guidance 1ssued to directors of listed companies, the Directors confirm that they have carried
out a review of the effectiveness of the system of internal financial control during the year ended 30 September
2011, as set out above No significant faillings or weaknesses were 1dentified

Independent professional advice, insurance and demmty

The Board has formalised arrangements under which the Directors, 1n the furtherance of therr dunes, may seek
independent professional adwvice at the expense of the Company The Company also maiwntains directors’ and
officers’ habality insurance, which includes cover of defence expenses

The Company’s Articles of Association provide the Dhirectors of the Company, subject to the provisions of

UK legislation, with an indemnity 1n respect of habihties which they may sustamn or mcur in connectuon with
their appointment On 14 December 2006, the Company entered into a deed poll providing the Directors with
mdemnities against liabality to third parties ansing in connection with any negligence, default, breach of duty or
breach of trust by the Directors (such indemmnities being qualifying third party indernnities and providing for the
funding of defence costs, 1n each case as permitted under the Companies Act 2006) No such indemnity 15
provided in relation to a hability incurred by a Director to the Company 1n respect of proceedings in which he 1s
convicted or a llability to pay a fine 1s imposed 1n criminal proceedings or by a regulatory authornty Any funding
provided to a Director who 15 not exonerated must be repaid Save for these, there are no qualifying third party
indemmty provisions in force

The Company Secretary

The Board has direct access to the advice and services of the Company Secretary, Kenneth J Greig, who 1s
responsible for ensuring that Board procedures are foilowed and that the applicable regulanons are complied with
The Company Secretary 1s also responsible to the Board for ensuring umely delivery of informauon and reports
and also for compliance with the starutory obligations of the Company

Dralogue with shareholders

Communication with shareholders 1s given a high priority by both the Board and the Investment Manager A
regular dialogue 15 mamntained with the Company’s institutional shareholders and private chent asset managers
through the Investment Manager, which regularly reports to the Board on any such contact, the views of
shareholders and any changes to the composition of the share register All shareholders are encouraged to attend
and vote at the Annual General Meeting, during which the Board and Investment Manager are available to discuss
1ssues affecting the Company Detais of all the resolutions being proposed at this year’s Annual General Meeung
are described 1n the Notice on pages 49 to 54 Shareholders wishing to communicate directly with the Board
should contact the Company Secretary at the Registered Office address

Copes of the Half-Yearly and Annual Reports are dispatched to shareholders by mail and are also available for
downloading from the Company’s website www theeuropeaninvestmenttrust com
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Management Report and Statement of Directors’
Responsibilities in Relation to the Annual Report and the
Financial Statements

Management report
Listed companies are required by the FSA’s Disclosure and Transparency Rules (the “Rules™) to include a
management report withm their Annual Report and Financial Statements

The informanon required 1o be included n the management report for the purpose of these Rules 15 included mn
the Chairman’s Statement on pages 3 and 4, the Investunent Manager’s Report and Portfolio Analysis on pages 5
and 6 and the Business Review contamned in the Directors’ Report on pages 11 to 14 Therefore no separate
management report has been included

Statement of Directors’ responsibilities in relation to the Annual Report and Financial Statements
The Dhirectors are responsible for preparing the Annual Report, the Directors’ Remuneration Report and the
Financial Statements 1 accordance with applicable law and regulations

Company law requires the Directors to prepare Financial Statements for each financial year Under that law the
Direcrors have prepared the Financial Statements in accordance with Unired Kingdom Generally Accepted
Accounung Practice (United Kingdom Accounting Standards and apphcable law) Under company law the
Directors must not approve the Financial Statements unless they are sanisfied that they give a true and fair view of
the state of affairs of the Company and of the profit or loss of the Company for that peniod In preparing these
Financial Statements, the Directors are required to

. select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently,
. make judgements and accounting estunates that are reasonable and prudent,
. state whether applicable UK Accounting Standards have been followed, subject to any material departures

disclosed and explained in the Financial Statements respecuvely, and

. prepare the Financial Statements on the going concern basis unless 1t 1s inappropriate to presume that the
Company will conunue i business

The Directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explam the
Company’s transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any ume the financial posiuon of the Company
and enable them to ensure that the Financial Statements and the Directors’ Remuneration Report comply with the
Companies Act 2006 They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Company and hence for taking
reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other wrregularines

Each of the Directors, whose names and funcnons are listed i the Directors’ Repaort, confirm that, to the best of
their knowledge

. the Financial Statements, which have been prepared 1n accordance with United Kingdom Generally
Accepted Accounting Practice (Unnted Kingdom Accounting Standards and applicable law), give a true
and fair view of the assets, habilities, financial position and loss of the Company, and

. the Directors’ Report contained in pages 11 to 17 includes a fair review of the development and
performance of the business and the posinon of the Company, together with a description of the principal
risks and uncertainties that 1t faces

The Directors confirm that, so far as they are each aware, there 15 no relevant audit information of which the
Company’s Auditors are unaware, and each Director has taken all the steps that ought to have been taken as a
Director to make himself aware of any relevant audit information and to establish that the Company’s Auditors are
aware of that information

The Directors are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the corporate and financial informauon
mcluded on the Company’s website The work carned out by the Auditors does not include consideration of these
matters and, accordingly, the Auditors accept no responsibiity for any changes that may have occurred to the
Financial Statements since they were minally presented on the website Legislation in the UK governing the
preparauon and dissemunation of Financial Statements may differ from legislation in other jurisdictions

On behalf of the Board

Douglas McDougall N
Chairman .

28 November 2011
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Independent Auditors’ Report
to the Members of The European Investment Trust plc
for the year ended 30 September 2011

We have audited the Financial Statements of The European Investment Trust plc for the year ended 30 September
2011 which comprise the Income Statement, the Balance Sheet, the Reconciliauon of Movements in Shareholders’
Funds, the Cash Flow Statement and the related notes The financial reporting framework that has been apphed in
their preparation 1s applicable law and United Kingdom Accounting Standards (United Kingdom Generally
Accepted Accounung Pracuce)

Respective responsibilities of Directors and Auditors

As explained more fully in the Statement of Directors® Responsibihities set out on page 25, the Directors are
responsible for the preparation of the Financial Statements and for bemng satisfied that they give a true and fair
view Qur responsibility 1s 10 audit and express an opinton: on the Financial Statements 1n accordance with
apphcable law and International Standards on Audiing (UK and Ireland) Those standards require us to comply
with the Auditing Practices Board’s Ethical Standards for Auditors

This report, including the opinions, has been prepared for and only for the Company’s members as a body 1n
accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006 and for no other purpose We do not, 1n giving
these opinions, accept or assume responsibility for any other purpose or to any other person to whom this report 1s
shown or into whose hands 11 may come save where expressly agreed by our prior consent in wnung

Scope of the audit of the Financial Statements

An audit invelves obtamming evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the Financial Statements sufficient to
give reasonable assurance that the Financial Statements are free from material misstatement, whether caused by
fraud or error This includes an assessment of whether the accountng policies are appropnate to the Company’s
circumstances and have been consistently applied and adequately disclosed, the reasonableness of significant
accountng esumates made by the Directors, and the overall presentation of the Financial Statements In addition,
we read all the financial and non-financial information described 1n the Annual Report to 30 September 2011 to
identify material inconsistencies with the audited Financial Statements If we become aware of any apparent
material misstatements or inconsistencies we consider the imphications for our report

Opinion on Financial Statements
In cur opinion the Financial Statements

. give a true and fair view of the state of the Company’s affairs as at 30 September 2011 and of uts loss and
cash flows for the year then ended,

. have been properly prepared 1n accordance with Umited Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting
Practce, and

. have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006

Opinion on other matters prescribed by the Compames Act 2006
In our opmion

. the part of the Directors’ Remuneratton Report to be audited has been properly prepared 1n accordance
with the Companies Act 2006, and

. the informauon given in the Directors’ Report for the financial year for which the Financial Statements
are prepared 1s consistent with the Financial Statements
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Matters on which we are required to report by exception
We have nothing to report mn respect of the folowing

Under the Compantes Act 2006 we are required to report to you 1if, 1n our opinion

. adequate accounting records have not been kept, or returns adequate for our audit have not been received
from branches not visited by us, or

. the Financial Statements and the part of the Directors’ Remuneranon Report to be audited are not 1n
agreement with the accountng records and returns, or

. certain disclosures of Directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made, or

. we have not recewved all the information and explanations we require for our audit
Under the Lisung Rules we are required to review

. the Directors’ statement, set out on page 16, 1n relation te going concern,

. the parts of the Corporate Governance Statement relating to the Company’s compliance with the nine
provisions of the UK Corporate Governance Code specified for our review, and

. certain elements of the report to shareholders by the Board on Directors’ remuneration

Karyn Lamont (Senior statutory auditor)

for and on behalf of

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditors
Edinburgh

28 November 2011
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Income Statement
for the year ended 30 September 2011

2011 2010

Revenue  Capatal Total Revenue Capual Total

Note £'000 £1000 £'000 £000 £7000 £7000

{Losses)/gains on investments at fair value 9 - (40,182) (40,182) - 3,616 3,616

Foreign exchange (losses)/gawns (7} 158 151 (1) (287) (297)

Income 2 9,734 - 9,734 8,554 - 8,554

Investment management fee 3 (1,311) - (1,311) (1,199) - (1,199)

Other expenses 4 (381) - (381) (531) 2 (529)
Net return before finance costs

and taxation 8,035 (40,024) (31,989) 6,814 3,331 10,145

Finance costs 5 (31) - (31) - - -

Net return before taxanon 8,004 (40,024) (32,020) 6,814 3,331 10,145

Tax on ordinary acuvities 6 (806) - (806) (772) - (772)

Net return attributable to shareholders 7,198 (40,0249) (32,826) 6,042 3,331 9,373

pence pence pence pence pence pence

Return per ordinary share* 8 16 97 (94.35) (77.38) 1379 7 60 21 39

* Based on the weighted average number of shares in i1ssue during the vear

All revenue and capual 1tems mn the above statement denive from continumg operations

The total column of this statement 15 the Profit and Loss Account of the Company The revenue and capual return
columns are prepared under guidance published by the Association of Investment Companes (“AIC”)

A separate Statrement of Total Recogmsed Gains and Losses has not been prepared as all such gamns and losses are

included 1n the Income Statement

‘The notes on pages 32 to 44 form part of these Financial Statements
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Balance Sheet
as at 30 September 2011

2011 2010
Noie £000 L7000
Fixed assets investments:
Investments at fair value through profit or loss 9 236,680 268,944
Current assets;
Debtors 11 1,454 4,474
Cash at bank and short-term deposits 5,294 9,789
6,748 14,263
Creditors: amounts falling due within one year 12 6,078 5,360
Net current assets 670 8,903
Net assets 237,350 277,847
Capital and reserves:
Called up share capital 13 10,600 10,675
Share premium account 123,749 123,749
Capital redemption reserve 8,211 8,136
Capital reserve 83,426 125,185
Revenue reserve 11,364 10,102
Total shareholders’ funds 237,350 277,847
pence pence
Net asset value per ordinary share 14 559.78 650 69

These Financial Statements on pages 28 to 44 were approved and authorised for 1ssue by the Board of Directors on
28 November 2011 and were signed on 1ts behalf by

Douglas McDougall
Chairman

The &roPe.an ! poestment plc
[0553 %4

The notes on pages 32 to 44 form part of these Financial Statements
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Reconciliation of Movements in Shareholders’ Funds

for the year ended 30 September 2011

Called Share Capital
up share  premmuum redemption Capial Revenue
capral account [eserve Teserve reéserve Total
Note £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 L1000

Year ended 30 September 2011
At 1 October 2010 10,675 123,749 8,136 125,185 10,102 277,847
Net return after taxauon for the year - - - (40,024) 7,198 (32,826)
Dividends paid 7 - - - - (5,936) (5,936)
Shares purchased and cancelled 13 (75) - 75 (1,735) - (1,735)
At 30 September 2011 10,600 123,749 8,211 83,426 11,364 237,350
Year ended 30 September 2010
At 1 October 2009 11,438 123,749 7,373 137,330 10,265 290,155
Net return after taxauon for the year - ~ - 3,331 6,042 9,373
Dividends paid 7 - - - - (6,205) (6,205
Shares purchased and cancelled 13 (763) - 763  (15,476) - (15,476)
At 30 September 2010 10,675 123,749 8,136 125,185 10,102 277,847

The notes on pages 32 to 44 form part of these Financial Statements
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Cash Flow Statement
for the year ended 30 September 2011

Note
Operating actvities:
Invesument income recerved
Interest receved
Investment management fees paid
Other cash payments

Net cash inflow from operating activities 15

Servicing of finance:
Interest paid

Taxation:

UK tax pard

Overseas rax paid

Qverseas tax recovered

Total taxation paid

Capital expenditure and financial investment:
Purchases of investments

Sales of investments
Exchange gains on settlement

Net cash {outflow)/inflow from capital and financial investment
Equity dividends paid 7
Net cash (outflow)/inflow before financing

Financing:
Payment for own shares purchased and cancelled

{Decrease)ncrease in cash 16

‘The notes on pages 32 to 44 form part of these Finanaial Statements
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2011 2010
£000 £1000
10,522 7,855
- 10
1,317 (1,164)
(348) (493)
8,857 6,208
(31) 1)
- (863)
1,292) (801)
372 39
(920) (1,625)
(121,735)  (225,428)
116,848 251,252
425 406
(4,462) 26,230
(5,936) (6,205)
(2,492) 24,587
(1,735) (16,306)
(4,227) 8,281




Notes to the Financial Statements
at 30 Septemnber 2011

1

Accounting policies

Basis of accounting

The Financial Statements are prepared on a going concern basis, under the historical cost convention
(modified to include fixed assets mnvestments at fair value), in accordance with the Companies Act 2006, UK
Generally Accepted Accounting Practice (“UK GAAP”} and with the AIC Statement of Recommended
Pracnuice 1ssued 1n January 2009 relating to the Financial Statements of Investment Trust Companies and
Venture Capital Trusts All the Company’s activities are continumng The Fimancial Statements have been
prepared 1 accordance with the applicable accounung standards

Income recognition

Dmndend and other investment income 15 mncluded as revenue {except where n the opimon of the Directors, 1ts
nature indicates 1t should be recognised as capital) on the ex-dividend date or, where no ex-dividend date 1s
quoted, when the Company’s right to recerve payment 15 established Income arising on holdings of fixed
mcome securities 1s recognised on 2 tume appornenment basis so as to reflect the effecuve nterest rate on that
security Deposit interest 1s included on an accruals basis

Dividends are accounted for in accordance with Financial Reporting Standard 16 “Current Taxation” on the !
basis of mcome actually recewvable, without adjusument for the tax credn attaching to the dividends Dividends
from overseas companies are shown gross of withhelding tax

Where the Company has elected to receve nts dividends in the form of additional shares rather than in cash
(scrip dividends), the amount of the cash dinidend foregone s recogmsed as mmcome Any excess 1n the value of
the shares recerved over the amount of the cash dmdend foregone 1s recogmised 1n the capital reserve

Borrowings
Loans and overdrafts are recorded at the proceeds received, net of 1ssue costs, wrrespective of the duration of
the mstrument

Fmance costs, mcluding interest, are accrued using the effective interest rate method See below for allocation
of finance costs within the Income Statement

Expenses and finance costs '
All expenses are accounted for on an accruals basis All operanng expenses including finance costs and

investment management fees are charged through revenue 1n the Income Statement except costs that are

wncidental 1o the acquisiuon or dispesal of investments, which are charged to capital in the Income Statement

Transaction costs are included within the gains and losses on investment sales, as disclosed 1n the Income .
Statement No performance fees are charged by the Investment Manager

Investments

All investments held by the Company are classified as ‘fair value through profit or loss’ Investments are imnally
recognised at cost, being the fair value of the considerauon given Interest accrued on fixed interest rate
securities at the date of purchase or sale 1s accounted for separately as accrued mcome, so that the value or
purchase price or sale proceeds 15 shown net of such tems

After imtial recogtmtion, investments are measured at fair value, with changes in the fair value of investments |
and mmpawrment of mvestments recognised 1n the Income Staternent and allocated to capital Gamns and losses
on ivestments sold are calculated as the difference between sales proceeds and cost

For mnvestments actively traded 1in organised financial markets, fair value 1s generally determined by reference
to Stock Exchange quoted market bid prices at the close of business on the Balance Sheet date, without
adjustment for transaction costs necessary to realise the asset Investments which are not quoted or which are
not frequently traded are stated at Directors’ best estimate of fair value, using the guidelines on valuation
published by the International Private Equity and Venture Capital Association This represents the Directors’
view of the amount for which an asset could be exchanged between knowledgeable willing parties in an arm’s
length transacuon This does not assume that the underlying business 1s saleable at the reporting date or that 1ts
current shareholders have any intenuon to sell their holding 1n the near future Where no rehable fair value can
be estimated, investrment may be carned at cost less any proviston for impairment
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1

Accounting policies (continued)

Foreign currency
The functional and presentational currency of the Company 15 sterling because that s the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the Company operates

Transactions denominated in foreign currencies are converted to sterling at the actual exchange rate as at the
date of the transacuon Monetary assets and habihies denormnated 1n foreign currencies at the year end are
reported at the rate of exchange to sterling at the Balance Sheet date Any gain or loss arising from a change 1n
exchange rate subsequent to the date of the transaction 1s included as an exchange gain or loss i the capatal
reserve or 1 revenue depending on whether the gamn or loss 15 of a capital or revenue nature

Taxation

The charge for taxation 1s based on the net return for the year and takes mnto account taxation deferred or
accelerated because of timing differences between the treatment of certain items for accountung and taxauon
purposes Full provision for deferred taxation 13 made under the hability method, wathout discounting, on all
uming differences that have arisen but not been reversed by the Balance Sheet date, unless such provision 15
not permitted by Financial Reporung Standard 19 “Deferred Tax™ This 1s subject to deferred tax assets only
being recognised if 1t 1s considered more likely than not that there wall be suitable profits from which the future
reversal of the underlying uming differences can be deducted Timing differences are differences arising
between the Company’s taxable profits and 1ts results as stated in the Financial Statements which are capable
of reversal in one or more subsequent years

Capital redemption reserve
The nomunal value of ordinary share capital purchased and cancelled 1s transferred out of called-up share
capital and 1nto the capital redempuion reserve on the relevant trade date

Capital reserve
Capital reserve — arising on investments sold
The following are accounted for 1n this reserve
- gams and losses on the realisauon of mvestments,
— reglised foreign exchange differences of a capmal nature,

— costs of professional advice (including related irrecoverable VAT) relating to the capital structure of the
Company,

— other capital charges and credits charged or credited to this account 1n accordance with the above policies,
and

— costs of purchasing ordinary share capital
Capntal reserve — arising on invesunents held
The following are accounted for in this reserve

— 1ncreases and decreases 1n the valuauon of investments held at the year end, and

— unreahsed foreign exchange differences of a capital nature
Dividends payable to shareholders

Under Financaial Reporting Standard 21 “Events after the Balance Sheet Date”, final and special dividends are
recogmsed as a hability in the year in which they have been approved by shareholders in a general meeting
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Notes to the Financial Statements (cononued)
at 30 September 2011

2 Income

Income from investments:
Overseas dividends
UK net dividend income

Other income:
Bank interest

Total income
3 Investment management fee

Investment management fee

Edinburgh Partners Limited was appownted to provide mmvestment management, marketing and general

2011 2010
£000 £1000
9,734 8,527

- 17
9,734 8,544
- 10
- 10
9,734 8,554

2011 2010
Total Total
£000 £'000
1,311 1,199

administrative services to the Company with effect from 1 February 2010 Under the agreement Edinburgh
Partners Limited 1s enutled to a fee paid quarterly in arrears, at the rate of 0 55% per annum of the market

capitahisation of the Company No performance fee will be paid

During the year ended 30 September 2011 the investment management fees payable to Edinburgh Partners
Limited totalled £1,311,000 (2010 Edinburgh Parmers Limited £497,000 and F&C Management Limited

£702,000)

At 30 September 2011 there was £301,000 outstanding payable to Edinburgh Partners Lunuted (2010

£307,000 payable to Edinburgh Parters Limited)

4 Other expenses

Auditors’ remuneration for
Audit services
Other services
Directors’ remuneration®
Qther

* See the Dhirectors’ Remuneranion Report on page 19
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2011 2010
£'000 £'000
18 28

- 35

78 78
285 390
381 531




Finance costs

Loan arrangement fee
Loan non-utilisation fee

On 19 September 2011, the Company entered inte a €30,000,000 secured multicurrency revolving loan

2011 2010
£000 £7000
26 -

5 _

31 -

facility agreement with Sconiabank Europe PLC for the purpose of pursuing 1ts investment objective The
facility 1s available for three years and mterest will be payable on amounts drawn down at the rate of 1 55%
above the British Bankers’ Association Interest Settlement Rate

As at 30 September 2011, this facility had not been utihsed A non-utilisation fee of 0 5% per annum 1s payable

Tax on ordinary activities

a} Analysts of charge for the year
Current tax:

UK corporation tax

Overseas 1ax suffered

Additional tax credits

Current tax charge for the year

Deferred tax:
Timing differences

Total tax charge for the year

b) The current taxation charge for the year ended 30 September 2011 1s lower than the standard rate of
corporation tax 1n the UK of 27% (2010 28%) (NB The standard rate of corporation tax was 28% to

31 March 2011 and 26% from 1 April 2011) The differences are explained below

Net return before taxanon

Theoretical tax at UK corporation tax rate
of 27% (2010 28%)

Effects of

— UK dividends that are not taxable

— Foreign dividends that are not taxable

— Non-taxable mvestment gans

— Disallowed expenses

— Unrelieved excess expenses

— Overseas tax suffered

— Addional tax creduts

— Double taxation rehief

2011 2010
Revepue Capatal Total Revenue Capital Total
£7000 £7000 £000 £000 £7000 £7000
806 - 806 801 —- 801
- - - (29) - (29)
806 - 806 772 - 772
806 - 806 772 - 772
2011 2010
Revenue  Capital Total Revenue Capnual Toral
£2000 £7000 £000 £000 £7000 £2000
8,004 (40,024) (32,020) 6,814 3,331 10,145
2,161 (10,806) (8,645) 1,908 933 2,841
- - - 3 - €)]
(2,195) - (2,195) (2,030) - (2,030)
- 10,806 10,806 - (933) (933)
13 - 13 15 - 15
21 - 21 133 - 133
806 - 806 801 - 801
- - - (29) - (29)
- - - (21) - (21
806 - 806 772 - 772
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Notes to the Financial Statements (conunued)
at 30 September 2011

6 Tax on ordinary activities {(continued)

¢) Factors that may affect future tax charges

At 30 Septemnber 2011 the Company had unreheved management expenses of £552,000 (2010 £476,000) It

15 unlikely that the Company will generate sufficient taxable income in the future to use these expenses to

reduce future tax charges and therefore no deferred tax asset has been recognised

In addition, due to the Company’s status as an mvestment trust and the intention to continue meeting the
conditions required to obran approval in the foreseeable future, the Company has not provided deferred 1ax on

any capital gains and losses arising on the revaluation or disposal of nvestments

7 Dividends
Declared and paid Payment date
Final didend for the year ended 30 September 2010 of 11 Op 31 January 2011
Special dividend for the year ended 30 September 2010 of 3 Op 31 January 2011
Final drmdend for the year ended 30 September 2009 of 10 2p 25 January 2010
Special dividend for the year ended 30 September 2009 of 3 4p 25 January 2010

2011 2010
£000 £000
4,664 -
1,272 -
- 4,654

- 1,551
5,936 6,205

The Directors recommend a final dividend 1n respect of the year ended 30 September 2011 of 12 Op and a
special dividend of 4 Op payable on 31 January 2012 to all shareholders on the register at close of business on
6 January 2012, a total of 16 Op (2010 14 Op) The ex-dividend date will be 4 January 2012 The

recommended final dividend and special dimidend are subject to approval by shareholders at the Annual

General Meeung to be held on 17 January 2012 Based on 42,400,748 ordinary shares in 1ssue at the date of

this report, the total dividend payment will amount to £6,784,000 as detailed below In accordance with

Financial Reporting Standard 21 “Events after the Balance Sheet date”, final dividends and special dividends
are accounted for in the period in which they are approved by shareholders The recommended final dividend
and special dividend have therefore not been included as a hability in these Financial Statements

Proposed
2011 final diridend of 12 Op (2010 11 Op) per ordinary share*
2011 special dividend of 4 Op (2010 3 Op) per ordinary share*

2011 2010
£7000 £7000
5,088 4,664
1,696 1,272
6,784 5,936

* Based on 42,400,748 shares in 1ssue at 28 November 2011
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8 Return per ordinary share 2011 2010
Net Ordinary Per Net Ordinary Per
return shares* share return shares* share
£000 pence £°000 pence
Net revenue return after taxation 7,198 42,420,474 16.97 6,042 43,818,474 1379
Net caputal return after taxanon  (40,024) 42,420,474 (94.35) 3,331 43,818,474 7 60
Total return (32,826) 42,420,474 (77.38) 9,373 43,818,474 21 39
* Weighted average number of ordmary shares 1n 1ssue duning the year
9 Listed investments 2011 2010
£000 £'000
Analysis of tnvestment portfolic movements
Opening book cost 250,224 247,335
Opening investment holding gamns 18,720 42,732
Opening valuation 268,944 290,067
Movements i the year
Purchases at cost 122,427 229,071
Sales — proceeds (114,509) (253,810)
Sales — realised gamns on sales 10,633 27,628
Investment holding losses {50,815) (24,012)
Closing valuation 236,680 268,944
Closing book cost 268,775 250,224
Closing investment holding (losses)/gains (32,095) 18,720
236,680 268,944
2011 2010
£000 £7000
Analysts of capital gains and losses
Gains on sales 10,633 27,628
Investment holding losses (50,815) (24,012)
(Losses)/gains on investments (40,182) 3,616
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
at 30 September 2011

9

10

11

12

Investments (continued)

Fair value hierarchy

In accordance with Financial Reporting Standard 29 “Fmancial Instruments Disclosures”, the Company must
disclose the fair value hierarchy that classifies financial mstruments measured at fair value at one of three levels
according to the relanve rehability of the inputs used to estimate the fair values

Classification Input
Level 1 Valued using quoted prices mn acuve markets for identical assets
Level 2 Valued by reference to valuation techmques using observable inputs other than quoted

prices mncluded within Level 1

Level 3 Valued by reference to valuation techniques using inputs that are not based on
observable market data

Categorisation within the hierarchy has been determimed on the basis of the lowest level input that 1s significant
to the fair value measurement of the relevant asset The valuatuon techntgues used by the Company are
explamned 1n note 1 All of the Company's financial mstruments fall into Level 1, being valued at quoted prices
1n actuve markets

Transaction costs

Durning the year ended 30 September 2011 the Company incurred transaction costs of £237,000 (2010
£384,000) and £191,000 (2010 £255,000) on purchases and sales of tnvesuments respectvely These amounts
are mncluded in losses/gains on investments at fair value, as disclosed in the Income Statemnent on page 28

Significant holdings
The Company had no heldings of 3% or mote of the share capital of any portfolic companies

Debtors 2011 2010
£000 £°000
Due from brokers 929 3,268
Dividends recetvabie - 796 '
Taxation recoverable 501 387
Prepayments and accrued income 24 23
1,454 4,474
Creditors: amounts falling due within one year 2011 2010
£000 £7000
Due to brokers 5,563 4,872
QOther creditors and accruals 214 181
Management fee accrued 301 307
6,078 5,360
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13

14

15

16

Called up share capital 2011 2010
£1000 £000

Allotted, called-up and fully paid
42,400,748 (2010 42,700,748) ordinary shares of 25p each 10,600 10,675

During the year to 30 September 2011, 300,000 ordinary shares were purchased and cancelled at a cost of
£1,735,000 (2010 3,052,000 ordinary shares were purchased and cancelled at a cost of £15,476,000)

Duration of the Company
The Company does not have a termination date or the requirement for any periodic continuation votes

Net asset value per share 30 September 30 September
2011 2010
Net asset value per ordinary share 559.78p 650 69p

The net asset value per ordinary share 18 based on net assets of £237,350,000 (2010 £277,847,000) and on
42,400,748 (2010 42,700,748) ordinary shares, beimng the number of ordinary shares in 1ssue at the year end

Reconciliation of net return before finance costs and taxation

to net cash inflow from operating activities 2011 2010

£000 £7000

Net return before finance costs and taxation (31,989) 10,145
Adjust for returns from non-operating acuvities
— Losses/(gains) on invesunents 40,182 (3,616)
— Foreign exchange {gamns)/losses of a capmal nature (158) 287
— Non-operaung expenses of a capital nature - (2)
Return from operating acuvities 8,035 6,814

Adjustment for non-cash flow 1items

— Decrease/(increase) 1n debtors and accrued mcome 795 (679)
— Increase in creditors and accruals 27 73
Net cash inflow from operaung actiaues 8,857 6,208
Reconciliation of net cash flows to movement in net cash 2011 2010
£000 £000
Movement 1n net cash resulting from cash flows (4,227) 8,281
Foreign exchange movements (268) (692)
Movement 1n net cash (4,495) 7,589
Net cash brought forward 9,789 2,200
Net cash carried forward 5,294 9,789
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Notes to the Financial Statements (contnued)
at 30 September 2011

16

17

Reconciliation of net cash flows to movement in net cash {continued)

Analysis of net cash

Foreign
At Cash exchange At
1 October flows movemnent 30 September
2010 2011
£7000 £000 £°000 £°000
Cash at bank 9,789 (4,227 (268) 5,294
Foreign
At Cash exchange At
1 October flows movement 30 September
2009 2010
£000 £000 £7000 £7000
Cash at bank 2,200 8,281 (692) 9,789
Analysis of financial assets and liabilities
Interest rate and currency profile
The 1nterest rate and currency profile of the Company’s financial assets and hiabiities were
2011 2010
Cash Cash
No flow No flow
interest 1nterest terest mterest
rate rate risk rate rate risk

Total exposure exposure

Total

exposure  exposure

£000 £°000 £000 £°000 £7000 £7000

Equity shares
Euro 177,649 177,649 - 226,073 226,073 -
Swiss franc 46,736 46,736 - 30,155 30,155 -
Swedish krona 6,320 6,320 - 5,651 5,651 -
US doltar 5,975 5,975 - 7,065 7,065 -
Sterhng - - - - - -
Cash at bank and short-term deposits
Euro 4,934 - 4,934 9,716 - 9,716
Sterling 360 - 360 73 - 73
Debtors
Euro 1,316 1,316 - 978 978 -
Swiss franc 114 114 - 133 133 -
Swedish krona - - - 3,268 3,268 -
US dollar - - - 72 72 -
Sterling 24 24 - 19 19 -
NZ dollar - - - 4 4 -
Short-term creditors
Euro (2,715) 2,715) - (4,276) (4,276) -
Swiss franc {1,232) (1,232) - - - -
US dollar (1,616) (1,616) - (596) (596) -
Sterhng (515) (515) - {488) (488) -

237,350 232,056 5,294 277,847 268,058 9,789
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18 Risk analysis

The Company 1s an mvestment company, listed on the London Stock Exchange, and conducts 1ts affairs so as
to qualfy in the Umted Kingdom (“UK”) as an mvestment trust under the prowvisions of Secnions 1158 and
1159 of the Corporaton Tax Act 2010 In so qualifying, the Company 1s exempted 1n the UK from corporation
tax on capital gains on 1ts portfoho of imvestments

As an Invesument Trust, the Company invests 1n equities and makes other investments so as to achieve 1ts
mvestment objective of long-term capital growth through a diversified portfolio of Conunental European
securities In pursuing uts imvestment objecuve, the Company 1s exposed to risks which could result 1n a
reduction of enther or both of the value of the net assets and the profits available for distribution by way of
diidend The Board, together with the Investment Manager, 1s responsible for the Company’s risk
management, as set out 1n detail in the Business Review of the Directors’ Report

The principal risks the Company faces are
* Investment and strategy risk
*  Discount volatility risk
¢ Market nsk (comprnising interest rate risk, currency risk and other price risk)
+  Liguduy nsk
«  Credit nisk
+  Gearmng risk

The Investment Manager monitors the risks affecung the Company on an ongomng basis within the policies and
guidehnes determined by the Board The Directors recerve financial information, which 1s used to 1denufy and
monitor risk, quarterly The Company may enter into dervative contracts to manage risk but has not done so
to date A description of the principal risks the Company faces i1s detailed below and in the Business Review of
the Directors’ Report

Investment and strategy risk
There can be nc guarantee that the objective of the Company will be achieved due to poor stock selection or as
a result of being geared 1n a falling market or ungeared 1n a nising market,

The Invesunent Manager meets regularty with the Board to discuss the portfolio performance and strategy The
Board receives bi-monthly reports from the Investment Manager detailing all portfolio transactions and any
other significant changes n the market or stock outlooks Details of the investment policy are given on page 13
of the Dhirectors’ Report

Discount voladlity risk

The Board recognises that 1t 1s i the long-term interests of shareholders to reduce discount volatihity and
believes that the prime dniver of discounts over the longer term 1s investment performance The Company 15
permutted to employ geanng, a process whereby funds are borrowed principatly for the purpose of purchasing
securities should the Board consider that it 1s appropriate to do so The use of gearing can magmfy discount
volatility

The Board actively monitors the discount at which the Company’s shares trade but it does not intend to 1ssue a
precise discount target at which shares will be bought back as 1t believes that the announcement of specific
targets 1s hkely to hinder rather than help the successful execution of a buy-back policy Equally, the Company
will 1ssue shares i1 order to meet demand as 1t arises

The Board’s commitment to allot or repurchase ordinary shares 15 subject to the Directors being sansfied that
any offer to allot or to purchase shares 1s 1n the best interests of shareholders of the Company as a whole
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18 Risk analysis (continued)
Market Rusk

Interest rate risk
The Company’s assets and hiabilities, excluding short-term debtors and creditors, may comprse financial
mstruments which mnclude investments in fixed interest securities

Details of the Company’s 1nterest rate exposure as at 30 September 2011 are disclosed in note 17 on page 40
of these Financial Statements

The majority of the Company’s assets were non-interest bearing as at 30 September 2011 There was limited
exposure to interest bearing liabilities during the year ended 30 September 2011

If interest rates had reduced by 0 25% (2010 0 25%) from those obtained as at 30 September 2011 1t would
have the effect, with all other vanables held constant, of reducing the net revenue return before taxation and
therefore reducing net assets on an annualised basis by £13,000 (2010 £24,000) If there had been an increase
n nterest rates of ¢ 25% (2010 0 25%) there would have been an equal and opposite effect in the net revenue
return before taxaton The calculations are based on cash at bank and short-term deposits as at 30 Seprember
2011 and these may not be representative of the year as a whole This level of change 15 considered to be
reasonable based on observation of current market conditions

Currency risk

The base currency of the Company 1s sterling The international nature of the Company’s investment activities
gives rise to a currency rnisk which 1s inherent in the performance of its overseas investments The Company’s
overseas income 1s also subject to currency fluctuations

It 15 not the Company’s policy to hedge this risk on a conunuing basis

Details of the Company’s foreign currency risk exposure as at 30 September 2011 are disclosed 1n note 17 on
page 40 of these Financial Statements

If sterling had strengthened by 10% against all other currencies on 30 September 2011, with all other variables
held constant, it would have the effect of reducing the net capital return before taxanen and therefore reducing
net assets by £23,750,000 (2010 £27,820,000) If sterling had weakened by 10% agamst all other currencies
there would have been an equal and opposite effect on the net capital return before taxation This level of
change 15 considered to be reasonable based on observauon of current market conditions

Other price risk

The Company 1s exposed to market nisk due to fluctuauons in the market prices of 1ts mvestments Market
price risk arises mainly from uncertainty about future prices of financial instruments used 1n the Company’s
business It represents the potential loss the Company mught suffer through holding market positions 1n the
face of price movements The Investment Manager momitors the prices of financial mstruments held by the
Company on an ongoing basis

The Investment Manager acuvely monitors market and economic data and reports to the Board, which considers
mvestment policy on a regular basis The net asset value per share of the Company 1s 1ssued daily to the
London Stock Exchange and the New Zealand Stock Exchange and 1s also available on the Company’s website
www theeuropeaninvestmenttrust com and on the Edinburgh Partner’s website www edinburghparters com

Fixed asset investmensts are valued at their fair value Details of the Company’s investment portfolio as at
30 September 2011 are disclosed on page 7 In addition an analysis of the investment portfolio by sector and
geographical distribunoen 1s detailed on page 8

The maximum exposure 0 other price risk at 30 September 2011 1s the fair value of investments of
£236,680,000 (2010 £268,944,000)
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18 Risk analysis (continued)

Cther price risk (continued)

If the investment portfolto valuation fell by 20% from the amount detailed 1n the Financial Statements as at
30 September 2011 1t would have the effect, with all other variables held constant, of reducing the net capital
return before taxation and therefore reducing net assets by £47,336,000 {2010 £53,789,000) An increase of
20% 1n the mnvestment portfolio valuation would have an equal and oppostte effect on the net capital return
before taxation The calculations are based on the Company’s other price risk at 30 September 2011 and may
not be representative of the year as a whole This level of change 15 considered to be reasonable based on
observation of current market conditions

Liquidity risk

Liqurdity risk 1s the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty 1n meening obligations associated with
financial habiliies The Company’s policy with regard 1o hquudity 1s to ensure continty of funding Short-
term flexibility 1s achieved through cash management and increased borrowing, mcluding the use of
overdraft facilities

Liquidity risk 1s not considered significant as the Company’s assets comprise of readily reahisable securities
which are industrnally and geograplucally diverse and which can be sold freely to meet funding requirements 1if
necessary Securities listed on a recognised stock exchange have been valued at bid prices and exchange rates
rubng at the close of busmess on 30 September 2011 In certain circumstances, the market prices at which
mnvestments are valued may not represent the realisable value of those investments, taking mto account both the
size of the Company’s holding and the frequency with which such mvestments are traded The Company does
not normally invest in derivative products The Investment Manager reviews hiquidity at the time of making
each mvestment decision The Board reviews hquidity exposure at each meenng

Credit risk
Credit risk 13 the risk of financial ioss to the Company if the contractual party to a financial mstrument fails to
meet 1ts contractual obligations

The carrying amounts of financial assets best represent the maximum credit rigsk exposure at the Balance Sheet
date There are no financial assets which are either past due or impaired

The Company’s listed mvestments are held on nts behaif by JPMorgan Chase Bank, NA acting as the
Company's custodian Bankruptcy or insolvency of the custodian may cause the Company’s nghts with respect
to securines held by the custodian to be delayed The Board monitors the Company’s risk by reviewing the
custodian’s mnternal controls reports

Investment transactions are carried out with a large number of brokers whose creditworthiness 1s reviewed by
the Investment Manager Transactions are ordinarily undertaken on a delwvery versus payment basis whereby
the Company’s custodian ensures that the counterparty to any transacnon entered into by the Company has
delivered 1n 1ts obligations before any transfer of cash or securities away from the Company 1s completed

Cash 1s only held at banks that have been 1dentified by the Board as reputable and of high credit quality
The maximum exposure to credit risk as at 30 September 2011 was £243,428,000 (2010 £283,207,000) The

calculation 15 based on the Company’s credit risk exposure as at 30 September 2011 and this may not be
representatrve of the year as a whole
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20

30 September 2011

Risk analysis (continued)

Gearing risk

The aimn of gearing 15 to enhance long-term returns to shareholders by investing borrowed funds in equities and
other assets The Company 1s permutted to employ gearing should the Board consider it approprniate 1o do so The
Board's policy 1s that the level of geanng should not exceed 20% 1n normal market condinons The use of gearing
can cause both gamns and losses in the asset value of the Company to be magnified

On 19 September 2011 the Company entered 1nto a €30,000,000 loan faciity with Scotiabank Europe PLC
As at 30 September 2011 none of this facility had been uthised and the Company therefore had no gearing at
the year end (2010 £ml)

The Board undertakes an annua! assessment and review of all the nisks stated above and in the Directors’
Report on pages 12 and 13 together with a review of any new risks which may have arisen during the year These
risks are formalised within the Company’s risk assessment matrix

Capital management policies

The objective of the Company 1s to achieve long-term capital growth through a dwersified portfolio of
Continentat European secunties In pursuing this long-term objective, the Board has a responsility for
ensuring the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern It must therefore maintain an oprumal capital
structure through varying market conditions This involves the ability to 1ssue and buy back share capital within
limus set by the shareholders in general meeting, borrow monies 1n the short and long-term and pay dividends
to shareholders out of current year revenue earnings as well as out of brought forward revenue reserves

Changes to ordinary share capiral are set out 1n note 13 on page 39 Dividend payments are set out 1 note 7 on
page 36

The Company’s capital comprises

2011 2010

£'000 £7000
Called-up share capital 10,600 10,675
Share premium account 123,749 123,749
Capital redempnion reserve 8,211 8,136
Capual reserve 83,426 125,185
Revenue reserve 11,364 10,102
Total shareholders’ funds 237,350 277,847

The capital reserve consists of realised capital reserves of £115,523,000 and unrealised capital losses of
£32,097,000 (2010 realsed capital reserves of £106,473,000 and unreahsed capital gans of £18,712,000)
The unrealised capital losses consists of investment holding losses of £32,095,000 (2010 unreahsed investment
holding gains of £18,720,000) and unreahsed foreign exchange losses of £2,000 (2010 £8,000)

The Company’s objectives for managing capital are the same as the previous year and have been comphed with
throughout the year

Transactions with the Investment Manager

Information with respect to transactions with the Investrment Manager 1s provided n note 3 on page 34 of
these Financial Statements and on page 15 in the Directors” Report
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Ten Year Record

Assets
at 30 September (£000) 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011
Total assets 359,895 271,468 332,448 350,088 415,207 437,207 495,931 304,198 290,155 277,847 237,350
Loans - 6,913 12,617 20,728 23,853 30,517 31,411 11,820 - - -
Ner assets 359,895 264,555 319,831 329,360 391,354 406,690 464,520 292,378 290,155 277,847 237,350
Net asset value (“NAV?)
at 30 September 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011
NAYV per share — pence 4783 3518 433 7 484 4 624 9 7312 897 3 599 4 634 2 650 7 5598
NAV total return on 100p — 5 years (per AIC) 826
NAV rotal return on 100p ~ 10 years {per AIC) 1317
Share price
at 30 September 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011
Middle market price per share 438 5 2770 349 5 4170 5600 664 5 8125 5180 5540 545 Q 462 5
Discount to NAV — % 83 213 19 4 139 104 91 95 136 126 162 17.4
Share price high — pence 7230 5295 3885 43030 5615 6900 864 0 840 0 554 0 576 0 621 0
Share price low — pence 3855 2770 2585 3520 4180 5335 6530 5140 3175 4655 450 1
Share price total return on 100p — 5 years {per AIC) 7.5
Share price total return on 100p — 10 years (per AIC) 124 6
Revenue
for the year ended 30 September

2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011
Available for ordinary shares

- £'000s 2,737 3,659 4,864 3,623 4,680 5,043 4,321 7,264 6,284 6,042 7,198

Earmungs per share — pence 36 49 65 51 70 87 80 14 3 132 138 170
Dividends per share — pence 23 471 6 5! 5 4t 75! LR 83 14 92 13 62 140¢ 16,05
1 Compnses a final dividend of 1 7p together with a speaal dividend
2 Comprises a final dividend of 12 Op together with a special dividend
3 Comprises a final dividend of 10 2p together with a special dividend
4 Compnses a final dmndend of 11 Op together with a special dwvidend
5 Compnises a final dividend of 12 Op together with a specal dividend
Performance
(rebased to 100 at 30 September 2001)

2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011
NAV per share 100 0 736 907 101.3 1307 1529 187 6 1253 132 6 136 ¢ 117.0
Mid price per share 1000 63 2 797 95 1 1277 1515 1853 118 1 1263 124 3 105 5
Earnings per share 1000 1335 179 7 140 4 1915 239 8 2209 3929 3637 3788 466 2
Dmdends per share 1000 204 3 2826 2348 326 1t 3913 3609 6478 5913 608 7 695 7
RPI 1000 101 7 1045 107 7 1106 114 6 1191 1251 1233 1290 136 3
Definitions

Total assets

NAV rotal return

AlC

Discount to NAV
Share price total return
RPI
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Total assets less current iabilines (excluding loans)
Return on net assets per share with dividends paid to shareholders reinvested
Association of Investtnent Companies
Amount that the middle market share price 1s less than the NAV
Return on the middle market share price with dividends paid to shareholders reinvested
All-itemns retail price index




Ten Year Record (conunued)

Costs of runmng the Company (total expense ratto)
for the year ended

30 September 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011
Operating costs (£’000s) 3,619 2,977 2,577 2,769 3,069 3,153 3,514 2,549 1,863 1,728 1,692
Operatng costs as 2

percentage of
Average net assets — % 08 08 09 08 08 08 08 07 0 8* 06 0.6
Average total assets - % 08 08 08 07 08 07 o7 07* 08 06 06

* Excludes VAT recovered 1n respect of management fees

Gearing
at 30 September 2001 2002 2003 2404 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011
Effective gearing— % ©6) 25 15 59 28 65 81 (2 0) ©3 @9 0.3
Fully invested gearing — % - 26 39 63 62 75 68 40 00 (LX) 00 i
Definitions |
Qperaung costs All costs charged to revenue and capital, other than interest costs, taxation, the costs
of purchase of share capital and the costs of buying and selling investments
Average net assets The average of net assets
Average total assets The average of total assets
Effecuve gearing Loans, less cash (adjusted for settlements), as a percentage of net assets
Fully invested gearing Loans as a percentage of net assets
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Glossary of Investment Trust Technical Terms

Discount/Premium

If the share price of an investment trust 1s lower than the nert asset value (“NAV™) per share, the shares are said to
be wracing at a discount The size of the discount 15 calculated by subtracung the share pnce from the NAV per
share and 1s usually expressed as a percentage of the NAV per share If the share price 15 higher than the NAV per
share, the shares are said to be trading at a premium

Gearing
Geaning 1s the process whereby changes in the total assets of a company have an exaggerated effect on the net
assets of that company’s ordinary shares due to the presence of borrowings

ISAs, Junior ISAs and SIPPs
Individual Savings Accounts, Jumor Individual Savings Accounts and Self-Invested Personal Pensions

Net asset value per share

The NAV per share 15 shareholders’ funds expressed as an amount per individual share Shareholders’ funds are
the total value of a company’s assets, at current market value, having deducted all prior charges at their par value
(or at their market value)

Total assets
Total asserts less current habilities before deducting prior charges Prior charges include all loans used for
INVestment purposes

Total expense ratio

The total operating expenses mcurred by a company, including any charged to caprtal (excluding interest costs) as
a percentage of average net assets

Total return

The combined effect of any dividends paid, together with the rise or fall in the share price or NAV Total return
staustcs enable the investor 1o make performance compansons between investment trusis with different dividend
policies Any divadends (after tax) receved by a shareholder are assumed to have been remvested n either
additional shares of the trust at the tume the shares go ex-dividend (the share price total return) or 1n the assets of
the mvestment trust at 1its NAV per share (the NAV total return} Total return per share statistics are calculated on
the basis of the weighted average number of shares 1n 1ssue
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Shareholder Information

Investing 1n the Company

The Company’s ordinary shares are traded on the Londen Stock Exchange and the New Zealand Stock Exchange
You can buy or sell shares through your stockbroker, bank or other professional investment adviser Shares in the
Company may also be bought and held in an ISA or Share Plan through the BNP Parbas — Edinburgh Partners
Savings Scheme and ISA Further information 15 available on the Company’s website

www theeuropeammnvestmenttrust com and on the Edinburgh Partners’ website www edinburghpartners com or by
telephone on 0845 358 1100

Frequency of NAV publication

The Company’s ordinary share NAV 15 released daily to the London Stock Exchange and the New Zealand Stock
Exchange and published on the Company’s website www theeuropeaninvestmenttrust com and on the Edinburgh
Partners” website www edinburghpartners com

Share price and sources of further information

The Company’s ordinary share price 15 quoted daily 1n the Financial Times, the Daily Telegraph and the Times
under “Investment Compames” Investors in New Zealand can obtain share prices from leading newspapers in that
country Prewious day closing price, daily NAV and other portfolio information 1s published on the Company’s
website www theeuropeaninvestmenttrust com and on the Edinburgh Partners’ website

www edinburghpartners com Other useful informanion on investmenrt 1rusts, such as prices, net asset values and
company announcernents, can be found on the websites of the London Stock Exchange

www londonstockexchange com and the Associanion of Investinent Compamies www theaic co uk

Share register enquiries

The register for the ordinary shares 1s maintained by Computershare Investor Services PLC In the event of queries
regarding your holding, please contact the Registrar on 087¢ 889 4086 or emall web quenes@computershare co uk
Changes of name and/or address must be notified 1n wriung to the Registrar, a1 the address shown on page 10 You
can check your shareholding and find practical help on transferring shares or updating your details at

www computershare co uk

Key dates

Company’s year end 30 September
Annual results announced November
Annual General Meeung January
Annual dividend paid January
Company’s haif-year end 31 March
Interim results announced May

Interim management statements

In accordance with the Disclosure and Transparency Rules, the Company will be releasing Interim Management
Statements (“IMS™) for the quarters ending 31 December 2011 and 30 June 2012 These will be released to the
London Stock Exchange and the New Zealand Stock Exchange and may be viewed at the Company’s website
www theeuropeaninvestmenttrust com

Risk warning

This document 1s not a recommendation, offer or invitation to buy, sell or hold shares of the Company If you wish
to deal 1n shares of the Company, you may wish to contact an authorised professional investment adviser The
value of the Company’s shares may fluctuate and investors may not get back the full value of thewr invesunent Past
performance 15 no guarantee of future performance The Company invests 1n overseas securities, changes in the
rates of exchange may also cause the value of your investment (and any income receved) to go down or up
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Notice of Annual General Meeting

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING of the Company will be held at Brewers’
Hall, Aldermanbury Square, London, EC2V 7HR on Tuesday, 17 January 2012, at 11 00 am to transact the business
set out 1n the resolutions below

Resolution on

Form of Proxy

Ordinary business
To consider and, 1if thought fit, pass the following resolutions as Qrdinary Resolutions
1 To recewe and, if thought fit, to accept the Reports of the Directors and Auditors and the Resolunon 1

audited Financial Statements for the year ended 30 Seprember 2011
2 To recewve and approve the Directors’ Remuneration Report for the year ended Resolution 2

30 September 2011
3 To reappomnt PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP as Auditors to the Company to hold office

from the conclusion of the meeung unti the conclusion of the next meeung at which

Financial Statements are laid before the Company Resolution 3
4 To authonse the Directors to determine the remuneration of the Auditors of the Company Resolutien 4
5 To re-elect Mr D C P McDougall as a Director of the Company Resolution 5
6 To re-elect MrW D Eason as a Director of the Company Resolution 6
7 To re-elect Mr R Kanza as a Director of the Company Resolution 7
8 To re-elect Mr M B Moule as a Director of the Company Resolution 8

9 To declare a final dividend of 12 Op per ordinary share for the year ended 30 September 2011 Resclution 9

10 To declare a special dividend of 4 Op per ordinary share for the year ended 30 September 2011  Resolution 10

Special business

11 To consider and, if thought fit, pass the following resolution as a Special Resolution Resolution 11

THAT the Company be and 1s hereby generally and unconditionally authonised, pursuant to
and 1n accordance with section 701 of the Compames Act 2006 (the “Act™), to make one or
more market purchases (within the meanmng of section 693(4) of the Act) of ordinary shares of
25p each 1n the capital of the Company (“ordinary shares™) on such terms and 1n such
manner as the Directors of the Company shall from ume to ume determine, provided that

(1) the maximum aggregate number of ordinary shares hereby authorised to be purchased
shall be 6,355,872 (or, 1if less, 14 99% of the number of ordinary shares n 1ssue
immediately following the passing of this resolution),

(u) the rmmmum price (exclusive of expenses) which may be paid by the Company for an
ordinary share shall be 25p,

(1) the maximum price (exclusive of expenses) which may be paid by the Company for an
ordinary share shall be no more than the higher of (a) 105% of the average of the
closing mid-market price of such shares (as derived from the Daly Official List of the
London Stock Exchange) for the five business days prior to the date of the purchase,
and (b) the amount stipulated by Article 5(1) of the Buy-Back and Stabilisation
Regulanons 2003,
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(1v) the authority hereby conferred shall expire at the conclusion of the next Annual
General Meeting of the Company after the passing of this resolution {(which must
be held no later than 31 March 2013), unless previously renewed, varied or revoked
by the Company in general meeting, and

(v) the Company may at any time make a contract or contracts to purchase ordinary
shares under the authority hereby conferred prior to the exprry of such authonty
which will or might be executed wholly or partly after the expiration of such
authority and may make a purchase of ordinary shares pursuant to any such
contract or contracts

12 To consider and, if thought fit, pass the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution

THAT the Directors of the Company be and they are hereby generally and uncondinonally
authorised (in subsututton for all subsisting authorities to the extent unused), pursuant to
and in accordance with section 551 of the Companies Act 2006 (the “Act”), to exercse all
the powers of the Company to allot shares 1n the Company and to grant nights to subscribe
for, or to convert any security into, shares in the Company (“Rights”)

(2a) up to an aggregate nominal amount of £3,533,395 (bewng approximately one-
third of the 1ssued share capital as at 25 November 2011), and

(b) comprising equity securities (within the meanming of secuon 560 of the Act) up
to a further aggregate nominal amount of £3,533,395 in connection with an
offer by way of a nghts 1ssue

(1) to holders of ordmary shares in proportion (as nearly as may be
practicable) 1o their existing holdings and

() to holders of other equuty secunities (if any) as required by the rights of
those securittes or as the Directors otherwise consider necessary,

and so that Directors may impose any lunits or restrictions and make any
arrangements which they consider necessary or appropriate to deal with
treasury shares, fractional entitlements, record dates, legal, regulatory or
practical problems 1n, or under the laws of, any territory or the requirements
of any regulatory body or stock exchange or any other matter (including any
such problerns ansing by virtue of equty securities bemng represented by
depositary receipts),

provided that the authorities conferred on the Directors by paragraph (a) and (b) above
shall, unless renewed, varied or revoked by the Company in general meeting, expire at the
conclusion of the next Annual General Meeung of the Company after the passing of this
resolution, (which must be held no later than 31 March 2013) save that the Company may
before such expiry make offers or agreements which would or might require shares to be
allotted or Rights to be granted after such expiry and so the Directors of the Company
may allot shares or grant Rights 1n pursuance of such offers or agreements as if the
authority conferred hereby had not expired
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13 To consider and, if thought fir, pass the following resolunon as a Special Resolution

THAT, subject to the passing of Resolution 12 above (and 1in substutution for all subsisting
authonues to the extent unused but without prejudice to the exercise of any such power
prior to the date hereof), the Directors be and are hereby empowered pursuant to section
570 of the Compamies Act 2006 (the “Act”) to allot equiry securiues (within the meaning
of secuon 560 of the Act) for cash pursuant to the authority conferred by Resolution 12 as
if section 561 of the Act did not apply to any such alloument, provided that this power shall
be hmited to the allotment of equity securities

(a) in connecuon with an offer of equity securities (but in the case of the authornty
granted under paragraph (b) of Resolution 12, by way of a nghts 1ssue only)

(1) to holder of ordinary shares in proportion {as nearly as may be
practicable) to therr existing holdings, and

() to holders of other equity secunues (if any) as required by the nghts of
those securntties or as Directors otherwise consider necessary, and so that
the Directors may impose any himits or restrictions and make any
arrangements which they consider necessary or appropriate to deal with
any fractional entitlements, record dates, legal, regulatory or practical
problems in, or under the laws of, any territory or the requirements of
any regulatory body or stock exchange or any other matter (including any
such problems ansing by virtue of equity securines being represented by
depositary receipts), and

(b) otherwise than pursuant to sub-paragraph (a) above, up to an aggregate
nommal amount of £530,009 (being approximately 5% of the 1ssued share
capital as at 25 November 2011)

and shall expire at the conclusion of the next Annual General Meetung of the
Company after the passing of this resclution (which must be held no later than

31 March 2013), save that the Company may before such expiry make an offer or
agreement which would or might require equity securities to be allotted after such
expiry and the Directors may allot equity securities in pursuance of any such offer or
agreement as if the power conferred by this resoluton had not expired

14 To consider and, if thought fit, pass the following resolution as a Special Resolution

THAT the Company be and 1s hereby generally and unconditionally authorised to
hold general meetings (other than annual general meetngs) on 14 clear days’ notice,
such authority to expire at the conclusion of the next annual general meeting of the
Company

Location of Meecting

Secretary

Registered Office
Beaufort House

51 New North Road
Exeter

EX4 4EP

28 November 2011
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Notice of Annual General Meeting (contnued)

Note 1

Note 2

Note 3

Pursuant to Section 324 of the Companies Act 2006, a member enutled o attend and vote at this meenng may appoiunt
one or more persons as his"her proxy or proxies 1o attend, speak and vote on hus/her behalf at the meettng A proxy need
not be a2 member of the Company If muttple proxies are appomnted, they must not be appomted 1n respect of the same
shares To be effecnive, the enclosed form of proxy, together with any power of attorney or other authonty under whuch 1t
1s signed or a notanally cernfied copy thereof, should be lodged ar the office of the Company’s Registrar, Computershare
Investor Services PL.C, the Pavilions, Bridgwater Road, Bristol BS99 6ZY together with any power of attorney (f any)
under which 1t 15 signed (or a certified copy thereof) not later than 48 hours {excluding non-working days) before the
ume of the meeting or any adjournment thereof The appowntment of a proxy will not prevent a member from attending
the meeting and voung in person if he/she so wishes A member present m person or by proxy shall have one vote on a
show of hands and on a poll every member present in person or by proxy shall have one vote for every ordinary share of
which he/she 15 the holder The terrmnanon of the authonty of a person 1o act as proxy must be noufied to the Company
n wnting Amended instructions must be recewved by the Company’s Registrar by the deadhine for receipt of proxies

To appowmnt more than one proxy, shareholders will need to complete a separate proxy form m relanon to each
appomntment (you may photocopy the proxy form), staning clearly on each proxy form the number of shares in
relation to which the proxy 15 appointed A faiture to specify the number of shares to which each proxy appomntment
relates or specifying an aggregate number of shares 1n excess of those held by the member will result in the proxy
appowmntment being invalid Please indicare if the proxy msturuction 15 one of muluple mstrucnons being given All
proxy forms must be signed and should be returned together in the same envelepe In the case of joint holders,
where more than one of the jomnt holders purports to appomt a proxy, only the appomntment subrmitted by rhe most
sentor holder will be accepted Semiority 15 deterrmined by the order in which the names of the joint holders appears
in the Company’s Register of Members 1n respect of the joint holders (the first named being the most seror)

The “vote withheld” opuon on the proxy form 1s provided to enable a shareholder to abstain on any particular
resolunon It should be noted that an abstention 13 not a vote 1n law and will not be counted n the calculanons of
the proporuon of votes “for” or “against™ a particular resolution

Shareholders who hold therr shares electromically may submmut their votes through CREST, by submutting the
appropriate and authenucated CREST message so as 1o be recewved by the Company’s Registrar not later than 48
hours (excluding non-working days) before the start of the meeung or any adjournment thereof Instructions on
how to vote through CREST can be found by accessing the following website www euroclear com/CREST
Shareholders are advised that CREST 1s the only method by which completed proxies can be submuitted
electromcally as required by Section 333A of the Compames Act 2006

CREST members who wish to appoint a proxy or proxies by utihsing the CREST elecuronic proxy appomumnent
service may do so for this meeting and any adjournment thereof by following the procedures described 1n the
CREST Manual CREST personal members or other CREST sponsored members, and those CREST members
who have appomnted a voung service provider(s), should refer to their CREST sponsor or voting service provider(s),
who wall be able to take the appropnate action on their behalf

In order for a proxy appomnunent or instructuon made by means of CREST 1o be valid, the appropriate CREST
message (a “CREST Proxy Instrucuon™) must be properly authennicated in accordance with Euroclear UK &
Ireland Linited’s speafications and must contam the informauon required for such instrucnons, as described 1n the
CREST Manual (available via www euroclear com/crest) The message, in order to be valid, must be transmirted so
as to be receved by the Company’s agent (ID 3RA50) by the latest ume for receipt of proxy appomntments specified
in Note 1 above For thus purpose, the ume of receipt will be taken to be the ume (as derermined by the umestamp
applied to the message by the CREST Apphcatuons Host) from which the Company's agent is able to retrieve the
message by enquiry to CREST 1n the manner prescribed by CREST After this time, any change of instrucnons to
proxes appomted through CREST should be communicated to the appointee through other means

CREST members and, where apphcable, therr CREST sponsors or voung service providers should note that
Euroclear UK & Ireland Lirmted does not make available special procedures in CREST for any parnicular
messages Normal systern imings and hmitations will therefore apply in relauon to the input of CREST Proxy
Instrucnons [t 1s the responsibility of the CREST member concerned to take (or, if the CREST member 1s a
CREST personal member or sponsored member or has appointed a voting service provider(s), to procure that his
CREST sponsor or votng service provider(s) take(s)) such action as shall be necessary to ensure that a message 15
transmutted by means of the CREST system by any parucular ume In this connectuon, CREST members and,
where applicable, their CREST sponsors or voung service providers are referred, in particular, to those sections of
the CREST Manual concermng practical imitatons of the CREST system and tmings
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Note 4

Note 5

Note 6

Note 7

Note 8

The Company may treart as invahd a CREST Proxy Instruction in the circumstances set out in Regulation 35(5)
{a) of the Unceruficated Securines Regulations 2001

A person to whom this notice 15 sent who 15 a person nominated under Section 146 of the Companies Act 2006 to
cnjoy informauon rights (a “Nommnated Person™) may, under an agreement berween himvher and the sharcholder
by whom he/she was nommated, have a right to be appointed (or to have someone else appointed) as a proxy for
the Annual General Meeung If a Nominated Person has no such proxy appointment right or does not wish to
exercise 1t, he/she may, under any such agreement, have a right te give instrucuons to the sharcholder as to the
exercise of votng rights The statements of the nghts of members 1n relation to the appointment of proxies in Note
1 above do not apply to a Nommnated Person The nights descnibed in that Note can only be exercised by registered
members of the Company

As at 25 November 2011 (the busintess day prior to the publication of this nouce) the Company’s 1ssued share
capital amounted to 42,400,748 ordinary shares carrying one vote each

Pursuant to Regulation 41 of the Unceruficated Securities Regulanions 2001, as amended, and/or the purposes of
Section 360B of the Companies Act 2006, the Company spectifies that only those shareholders registered on the
Register of Members of the Company as at 6 00 pm on 13 January 2012 (or, in the event that the meenng 1s
adjourned, only those shareholders registered on the Register of Members of the Company 2s at 6 00 pm on the
day which 15 two days (excluding non-working days) prior to the adjourned meeung} shall be entided o attend in
person or by proxy and vote at the Annual General Meeung 1n respect of the number of shares registered 1n thewr
name at that ttme Changes to entries on the Register of Members after that ume shall be disregarded in
determunung the rights of any person to attend or vote at the meenng

In accordance with Secuon 31%A of the Companies Act 2006, the Company must cause any questuon relating to
the business bewng dealt with ar the meenng put by a member attending the meeting to be answered No such
answer need be given if

a) to do so would

(1) mnterfere unduly with the preparanon for the meening, ot
() tnvolve the disclosure of confidennal informanon,

b) the answer has already been given on a website 1n the form of an answer to a quesuon, or

€) 1t1s undesirable in the interests of the Company or the good order of the meeung that the questuon
be answered

A person authonsed by a corporauon 1s entitled to exercise {on behalf of the corporaticn) the same powers as the
corporanon could exercise if 1t were an individual member of the Company (provided, 1n the case of muluple
corporate representatives of the same corporate shareholder, they are appointed 1n respect of different shares owned
by the corporate shareholder or, if they are appointed 1n respect of the same shares, they vote those shares in the
same way) To be able to anend and vote ar the meenng, corporate representanives will be required o produce prior
to therr entry to the meeung evidence satisfactory to the Company of therr appoimntment Corporate shareholders
can also appomnt one or more proxies 1n accordance wiath Note 1 On a vote on a resolution on a show of hands,
each authonised person has the same vonng nghts to which the corporation would be enutled On a voteon a
resolution on a poll, if more than one authorised person purports to exercise a power 1 respect of the same shares

a) if they purport to exercise the power in the sarne way as each other, the power 15 treated as exercised n
that way, or

b) 1f they do not purport to exercise the power in the same way as each other, the power 1s treated as
not exercised
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Note 9  Members should note that it 1s possible that, pursuant to requests made by members of the Company under
Section 527 of the Companies Act 2006, the Company may be required to publish on a website a staternent setting
out any matter relating to (1) the audit of the Company’s Financial Statements (including the auditor’s report and
the conduct of the audit) that are 1o be iaid before the Annual General Meenng, or (1) any circumsrances
connected with an audutor of the Company ceasing to hold office since the previous meeting ar which annual
accounts and reports were lawd in accordance with Secnon 437 of the Companies Act 2006 The Company may not
require the members requesting any such website pubhication to pay its expenses in complymg with Sectnons 527 or
528 of the Companies Act 2006 Where the Company 1s required to place a statement on a website under Section
527 of the Companies Act 2006, it must forward the statement to the Company’s Auditors not later than the ume
when 1t makes the statement availlable on the websie The business which may be dealr with at the Annual General
Meeung includes any statement that the Company has been required under Section 527 of the Compames Act
2006 to publish on a website

Note 10 Any person holding 3% or more of the toral voung rights of the Company who appoints a person other than the
charrman of the meeung as his/her proxy 1s to ensure that both he/she and his/her proxy comply with their
respecuve disclosure obliganons under the UK Iisclosure and Transparency Rules

Note 11 Members satisfinng the thresholds in Section 338 of the Companies Act 2006 may require the Company to give, to
members of the Company enntled to recerve notice of the Annual General Meeung, notice of a resolution which
those members intend to move (and which may properly be moved) at the Annual General Meetung A resoluton
may properly be moved at the Annual General Meeung unless (1) it would, if passed, be meffecuve (whether by
reason of any inconsistency with any enactment or the Company’s constitution or otherwise), (1) 1t 1s defamartory of
any person, or (m) it 1s frivolous or vexauous A request made pursuant to this right may be in hard copy or electromic
form, must 1dentify the resolution of which notice 15 to be given, must be authenucated by the person(s) making 1t
and must be recerved by the Company not later than six weeks before the date of the Annual General Meeung

Note 12 Members sausfying the thresholds in Secuon 338A of the Companies Act 2006 may request the Company to
mnclude 1n the business 1o be dealt wath at the Annual General Meeung any marer {other than a proposed
resolunion) which may properly be mncluded in the business at the Annual General Meering A marter may properly
be included in the business ar the Annual General Meeung unless (1) 1t 1s defamarory of any persons or {11) 1t 1s
frivolous or vexatious A request made pursuant to this night may be 1n hard copy or ¢lectronic form, must idenufy
the matter to be included 1in the business, must be accomparned by a statement settng oui the grounds for the
request, must be authenncated by the person{s) making 1t and must be recewed by the Company not later than 6
weeks before the date of the Annual General Meeting

Note 13 The following documents will be available for inspection at the registered office of the Company during normal
business hours on any weekday (Saturdays, Sundays and public holidays excepted) from the date of this nouce until
the conclusion of the Annual General Meetng and on the date of the Annual General Meenng at Brewers® Hall,
Aldermanbury Square, London, EC2V 7HR from 10 45 am unnl the conclusion of the meeung

a) leuters of appointment of the Directors of the Company, and
b) the Articles of Associanen of the Company

Note 14 The Annual Report tncorporating this Notice of Annual General Meeting and, if applicable, any members’
statements, members’ resolutions or members’ matiers of business recewed by the Company after the date of this
Notice, will be available on the Company’s website www theeuropeaninvestmenttrust com
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